
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         January 2, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – JANUARY 2, 2024 

 
BOS Board Room                  Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. Katie Patton – RC Attorney Service Award 
 

2. Saint Paul Fire Department – EMS First Response Resolution  
 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING…………………………………………………………………A-1 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman 
 

3. Clerk of Board and Deputy Clerk 
 

4. Adoption of Robert’s Rules of Order 
 

5. Adoption of County’s By-Laws 
 

6. CY 2024 Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Schedule  



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         January 2, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 

7. FY 2024/2025 Board of Supervisors Budget Meeting Schedule 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of December 11, 2023         

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. 2024 Authorized Payments.  Authorization of the list of operational 
routine monthly payments for delegated authorization……………….…………B-3 
 

4. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration………………………………B-4 
 

Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Executive Board 
 
Steve Breeding    Concurrent with Term 
Lou Ann Wallace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Carl Rhea     Concurrent with Term 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Planning Commission 
 
Oris Christian    Concurrent with Term 
 
Regional Jail Board  
 
Oris Christian    Concurrent with Term 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Authority  
 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
Carl Rhea     Concurrent with Term  
 
Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO) (Workforce Dev. Board) 
 
Lou Ann Wallace    Concurrent with Term 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         January 2, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
Budget/Finance Committee 

  
 Vacant     One-Year Term 

Vacant     One-Year Term 
 
Coal Road Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Finney Community Center 
 
David Compton    Two-Year Term  January 3, 2024 
Edward Tiller    Two-Year Term  January 3, 2024 
 
Spearhead Trails-Trailblazers 

  
Kelsay King     Four-Year Term  January 4, 2024 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. VACo Preliminary Legislative Program 2024………………………………………D-1 
 

2. 2024 Southwest VA Legislative Reception (1/31/24) & VACo Local                                
Government Day & Reception (2/1/24)………………………… ………….....…….D-2 
 

3. Governor’s Recommended Budget Bills (FY24 Caboose & Biennial Budget..D-3 
 

4. State and Local Economic Interests and Financial Disclosure Statements &                          
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Training……………………………………….D-4 
 

5. Lebanon Fire Department – RC Courthouse Fire Chiefs Report………………..D-5 
 

6. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-6 
 

 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         January 2, 2024 
 

Russell County Page 4 
 

 
REQUESTS 

  
7. RC Six-Year General Reassessment Services Request for Proposals                            

(RFP) Contract……………………………………………………………..………….....D-7 
 

8. Eagleview GSD County-wide Pictometry Contract for Flight Services of the                     
County – General Reassessment Services…………………………………………D-8 
 

9. IDA Commonwealth’s Development Opportunity Fund Performance                          
Agreement & Grant for the Tate Corp. (Bush Building) - $700,000…………….D-9  
 

10. Community Development Block Grant #21-21-14 – Dante Regional Sewer                               
Line Extension Project Contract Amendment #1 – Supplemental Funding -                        
$1,000,000………………………………………………………………………………...D-10 
 

11. DCJS VA Services, Training, Officers, Prosecution (VSTOP) Formula Grant                   
Program for Continuation and New Applicants - $133,333……………………...D-11 
 

12. RC Disposal Truck Purchase – State Contract - $212,000……………………….D-12 
 

13. Local Law Enforcement (LOLE) Grant Program – FY 23 - $2,512………………D-13 
 

14. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request Form – FY24 - $116,191.92……………D-14 
 

15. Saint Paul Fire Department – EMS First Response Resolution…………………D-15 
 

16. Honaker & Castlewood Canneries……………………………………………………D-16 
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer…………….……………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Conference Center…………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...K 
• RC Canneries……….…………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..M 
• RC Disposal………..……………………………………………………………………..N  
• RC Litter………..………………………………………………………………………….O 



JANUARY 2024 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

TAKE NOTICE pursuant to Section 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia, the Russell County Board 

of Supervisors changed its January 2024 regular monthly board meeting from January 1st, 2024, to 

January 2nd, 2024, at 6 p.m. at the Russell County Board Room, located at 137 Highland Drive, 

Lebanon, Virginia due to January 1st, 2024, being a State Holiday.  

  

Notice Given Pursuant to Section 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia on the 27th day 
 
of December 2023. 
 

BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 Russell County Virginia  

“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

Tim Lovelace 
District 1 

 Steve Breeding 
District 5 

Carl Rhea Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3 District 2 District 6 

David Eaton Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4 At-Large County Administrator 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/


                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 1/2/24      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations  
 
1. Katie Patton – RC Attorney Service Award 

   
2. Saint Paul Fire Department – EMS First Response Resolution  

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



St. Paul Fire Department
EMS First Response

in Russell County, VA

Wesley Lawson, NREMT
Secretary, Treasurer

Fire Instructor 1 & EMT-Intermediate



Need For EMS First Response
• EMS Agencies nationwide are struggling to continue to 

operate with volunteers.
• We must be creative to help fill the void to protect our 

own and our citizens. 
– The ability to protect our own when an ambulance is not 

available. Firefighters are at a high risk of cardiac and traumatic 
emergencies.  

– To protect our EMS licensed members to be able to provide 
more patient care rather than just basic first aid.

EMS First Response



Our Request For EMS First Response
• Resolution from the Board of Supervisors for St. Paul Fire 

Department to provide Emergency Medical Services as 
a First Response Non-Transport Agency 

• Authorization for the County Administrator or Emergency 
Services Coordinator to sign the EMS Agency Licensure 
form

EMS First Response



Why
• This will allow St. Paul Fire Department to be licensed by 

the Virginia Office of Emergency Medical Services to 
respond to EMS calls to provide lifesaving Emergency 
Medical Services when an ambulance is not available, 
buying time for an ambulance to arrive to the scene.

• Reference: 12VAC5-31-610

EMS First Response



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors          Action Items 

137 Highland Drive                                         Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

  Meeting: 1/2/24   6:00 PM 
 

 
Organizational Meeting 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman 
 

3. Clerk of Board and Deputy Clerk 
 

4. Adoption of Robert’s Rules of Order 
 

5. Adoption of County’s By-Laws 
 

6. CY 2024 Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Schedule 
 

7. FY 2024/2025 Board of Supervisors Budget Meeting Schedule 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
 

Motions Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• County’s By-Laws  
• CY 2024 Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Schedule 
• FY 2024/2025 Board of Supervisors Budget Meeting Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



By Laws 
Russell County  
• Adopted May 5, 2014 
 
Article I 
Russell County Board of Supervisors, Officers & Their Selection 
A. There shall be seven (7) members of the Board of Supervisors, six (6) elected 
for four-year terms by citizen vote of each of the six (6) Districts of Russell County 
and one (1) member elected at-large by the entire County for four years. 
 
B. The Officers of the Board of Supervisors shall consist of a Chairman and Vice Chairman, 
each of whom shall serve for a term of one (1) calendar year.  
 
C. Nomination of Officers shall be made from the Board at the first meeting of each calendar 
year.  Election of Officers shall follow immediately. 

D.  A standing Budget/Finance Committee shall be appointed by the newly elected Board 
Chairman.  This committee shall consist of two (2) Board members and two (2) staff 
members.  
 
Article II 
Duties of Officers 
A. The Chairman shall:  
(1) Preside at all meetings;  
(2) Work closely with the County Administrator on day to day matters, approve appropriate 
financial documents, and approve the agenda for all meetings; 
(3) Carry out such other duties as assigned by the Board.  
 
B. The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence or inability of the Chairman to act. 
 
C. The Budget/Finance Committee shall be responsible for preparation of the annual County 
budget and for presentation during a regular or special Board meeting before a vote is taken 
on the Budget each year.  Other financial matters shall be considered by this committee 
before presentation to the full Board.  
 
Article III 
Agenda Preparation Policy 
A. The County Administrator shall prepare an agenda for each regular meeting of the Board 
of Supervisors. Supervisors, staff, and others may submit to the County Administrator items 
for the agenda at any time prior to Noon Wednesday of the week preceding the regular 
meeting to which such item relates. Emergency items will be added as an amendment to 
the agenda.  
 
B. Copies of the agenda shall be made available electronically for each Supervisor by close 
of business on Tuesday prior to the Board meeting and an agenda complete with a packet of 
materials for the Board members  and News Media serving the County and the public not 
later than close of business on Thursday preceding the meeting to which it relates.  
 

Lonzo Lester
Underline

Lonzo Lester
Underline



Article IV 
Meetings 
A. The time and place of Board Meetings shall be set from time to time by resolution of the 
Board in conformance with State Law. The regular meeting schedule shall be set at the 
organizational meeting held in January each year.  
 
B. Minutes from the previous meeting shall be delivered to the Board members with the 
agenda prior to the next meeting. Unless requested by a Board member, the minutes will 
not be read and will be approved upon motion and vote of the Board.  
 
C. Order of Business 
(1) Commencement of Meetings:  
At the time established in accordance with Article IV (A) of these By-Laws for the 
commencement of regular meetings or at the hour specified for continued or special 
meetings, the Chairman shall call the meeting to order and shall direct the clerk to note the 
absence of any Board members by roll call. A quorum shall be required for commencement 
of any meeting.  
 
(2) Agenda:  
An agenda shall be prepared by the County Administrator in accordance with Article III 
under these By-laws. The proposed agenda shall be adopted by the Board at each meeting. 
The agenda will include under New Business “Reports from Designated Standing 
Committees”. Should the chairman or any member of the Board have a matter which he or 
she feels needs to be brought to the attention of the Board but which is not on the agenda, 
or if there is an amendment to the order of the agenda, he or she may make a motion that 
an addition or amendment be made to the agenda. Such amended agenda must be 
approved by a majority of the Board members present. 

D. Presentations: 
Matters to be presented to the Board may be arranged by persons prior to the meetings and 
placed on the Agenda.  The County Administrator must be notified by Wednesday of the 
week prior to the Board meeting.  Any materials to be used for the presentation must be 
provided and included in agenda packet.  Additional materials presented at the Board 
meeting must be approved by the Chairman prior to dissemination.  These presentations 
are strongly encouraged to be limited to five (5) minutes and when four (4) minutes has 
elapsed, the Chairman may instruct the speaker that one (1) minute is remaining.  
 
E. Quorum & Method of Voting 
A majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors shall constitute a quorum of the 
Board. All questions submitted to the Board for decision shall be determined by voice vote 
of a majority of the supervisors voting on any such questions, unless otherwise provided by 
law. The name of each member voting and how he or she voted must be recorded.  Roll Call 
votes may be requested by any Board member.  
 
F. Procedure for Roll Call of Board Members 
(1) The Members of the Board of Supervisors shall cast votes in district order on a rotating 
basis per meeting.  
(2) The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors shall cast the last vote. 
(3) The Chairman/Clerk shall restate all motions before a vote is taken and the result of the 



vote shall be announced following each vote.  
 
G. General Rules of Procedure 
The Board’s Parliamentary Procedures shall be Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11th 
edition, specifically to include Section 49, Conduct of Business in Boards, pages 486 – 488, 
in all matters not covered by the Board’s bylaws, to the extent compatible with law and the 
historical practices of the Board. The County Attorney, or his or her designee, shall act as 
Parliamentarian to the Board. Any questions involving the interpretation or application of 
Robert’s Rules shall be addressed to the County Attorney. The Board may amend, by 
Resolution, the rules as it deems appropriate. The following rules shall apply:  
 
(1) Members are not required to obtain the floor before making motions or speaking, which 
they can do while seated.  
 
(2) All motions require a second except for nominations for appointments to other boards, 
authorities or commissions. 
 
(3) There is no limit to the number of times a member can speak to a question, and motions 
to close or limit debate generally should not be entertained.    
 
(4) Informal discussion of a subject is permitted while no motion is pending.  
 
(5) The Chairman can speak in discussion without leaving the chair, can vote on all 
questions, but cannot make motions unless by consent of a majority of Board members 
present.  
 
(6) No Board member is required to vote on any issue. If any Board member determines, 
prior to the calling of any issue before the Board, that he, because of conflict or otherwise, 
will abstain from voting on such issue, he shall announce such intention at the time the 
issue comes before the Board and shall not participate in the discussion on such issue or 
question. An abstention shall be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. An 
abstention defeats a motion requiring a unanimous vote.  
 
(7) In the incidence of a tie vote, the issue voted upon by the Board is dead and therefore 
voted down. 
 
(8) If a primary or substitute motion is made at a Board meeting where at least six (6) 
members are present and the motion is voted on and fails, the same or a substantively 
similar motion cannot be reconsidered by the Board within the following twelve (12) months 
except by a primary or substitute motion made by a member of the Board who voted on the 
prevailing side where there are no less than six (6) Board members present, and only if 
two-thirds (2/3) of the Board members present vote to reconsider the action previously 
decided. 
 
(9) Only Board members and the Parliamentarian shall have standing to raise 
noncompliance with these General Rules of Procedure, and only during the current meeting 
at the time of violation. Failure of the Board to comply with these General Rules of 
Procedure shall not invalidate any action taken by the Board.  
 
H. Member Absenting Himself from Meeting Prior to Adjournment 
After the name of any member of the Board has been recorded as present at any meeting of 
the Board, he shall not absent himself from the remainder of the meeting prior to 
adjournment unless by consent of the Board.  



 
I. Board to Sit with Open Doors 
The Board of Supervisors shall sit with open doors and all persons conducting themselves in 
an orderly manner may attend the meetings; however, the Board may hold closed sessions 
as permitted by law and when deemed necessary by a majority vote of the Board.  
 
A consent agenda shall be introduced by a motion “to approve” by any Board member, and 
shall be considered by the Board as a single item. There shall be no debate or discussion by 
any member of the Board regarding any item on the consent agenda. The Clerk or his/her 
designee shall provide a brief written summary or memo on each item included in the 
consent agenda. Upon request of any Board member who wishes to question or discuss an 
item, that item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda. This item shall be transferred 
onto the agenda for consideration.  
 
J. Citizens Comment Period  
Rules for Citizen Comment Period 
To ensure that the affairs of the Board and its committees may be conducted in an orderly 
manner, to ensure that all persons desiring to address the Board on matters pertinent to it 
are afforded an opportunity to do so, to permit persons in attendance to observe and hear 
the proceedings of the Board without distraction, and to permit to the fullest extent the 
Board to conduct County business with minimal disruption, the following rules are 
established.  
 
(1) Each person desiring to speak during the Citizens’ Comment period on the agenda must 
provide name and address prior to their comments.  
 
(2) Each speaker  is strongly encouraged to limit remarks to a period of three (3) minutes 
per comment period; when two (2) minutes have passed the speaker  may be reminded 
that there is one (1) minute remaining.  
 
(3) Speakers may not donate their time to other speakers.  
 
(4) Speakers will not be permitted to use audiovisual materials or other visual displays, but 
may present written and photographic materials to the Board members.  
 
(5) Comments must be confined to matters germane to the business of the Board of 
Supervisors and shall not be cumulative or repetitive.  
 
(6) Speakers should address the Board with decorum – loud, boisterous, and disruptive 
behavior, obscenity, and vulgarity should be avoided as well as other words or acts tending 
to evoke violence or deemed to be a breach of the peace.  
 
(7) The Citizens’ Comment period is not intended to be a question and answer period or 
time for dialogue with County officials. Questions which are raised during a comment period 
may at the discretion of the Board be responded to by County officials after sufficient time 
for appropriate investigation.  
 
(8) Speakers shall remain at the podium while addressing the Board.  
 
(9) Speakers shall not be interrupted by audience comments, calls/whistles, laughter, or 
other gestures. Individuals in the audience who do not abide by this policy after a warning 
will be asked to leave the meeting.  
 



(10) Expressive activities including, but not limited to, petitioning, picketing, displaying 
signs and posters, solicitation, demonstrating, pamphlet distribution, and conducting polls 
shall not be permitted within the Governmental Center Building or in any other building that 
the Board is meeting.  
 
These rules do not preclude persons from delivering to the Board or its Clerk written 
materials including reports, statements, exhibits, letters, or signed petitions or to prohibit 
persons from presenting oral or written comments on any subject germane to the business 
of the Board to individual Board members or to the Board through its Clerk outside the 
context of the public meeting.  
 
K. Agenda Item Procedure 
The following guidelines shall be followed for comment addressed to specific agenda items:  
 
(1) In order to prevent obvious questions from consuming Board Meeting time, the 
Chairman and/or designated person(s) will advise the speaker if a matter is to be 
considered during some other time during the meeting. 
 
Article V  
Procedure for Dealing with Items Not on the Agenda 
A. All matters not on the agenda must be raised during citizens comment period. Any 
matter not on the agenda shall not be considered unless approved for consideration by the 
majority of the Board present in accordance with Article IV, C (2).  
 
B. For any special meeting, the business to be discussed shall be stated in the call for such 
meeting. The Chairman or Administrator shall prepare a written agenda listing all items to 
be considered for every special meeting. No other business shall be discussed or acted upon 
unless approved for consideration by the majority of the Board present in accordance with 
Article IV, C (2).  
 
Article VI 
Public Hearings 
A. All public hearings will be advertised in accordance with the Virginia Code. Public hearings 
may be postponed, continued or canceled at the discretion of the Board.  
 
B. In addition to those required by law, the Board at its discretion may hold public hearings 
when it decides that a hearing will be in the public interest.  
 
C. The case before the Board shall be summarized by the Chairman or designated 
person(s). If there is expected to be many speakers on the issue, interested parties wishing 
to speak must sign the register at the rear of the room prior to the start of the hearing. 
Each person wishing to speak will be called to the podium by the Chairman or designated 
person(s) in the order such person signed the register and must state his or her name and 
address for the record. Generally, each citizen should be provided an opportunity to speak.  
Each speaker shall be limited to three (3) minutes, unless waived by the Board.  
 
D. Board Members shall limit their comments in public hearings to insure participation by 
the public without Board interference. 



 
Article VII 
Appointment of Committees 
Appointments to committees of the Board may be made by the Chairman.  Appointments to 
other authorities, boards, and commissions, shall be made only by member motion adopted 
by a majority of the full Board. Prior to consideration of the nomination, the nominee shall 
be notified to determine his or her willingness to serve and to determine if he or she meets 
the qualifications for such appointment.  
 
Article VIII 
Duties of the County Administrator 
The County Administrator shall:  
 
A. Prepare the agenda for each meeting for approval in conformance with the agenda 
preparation procedure outlined in these bylaws.  
 
B. Keep a written record of all business transacted by the Board.  
 
C. Administer the financial control procedures of the County.  
 
D. Advise and inform the Board on all matters affecting County government.  
 
E. Execute all formal documents authorized by the Board of Supervisors.  
 
F. Provide and supervise all staff services directly under the control of the Board of 
Supervisors.  
 
G. The County Administrator shall be responsible for all personnel management of the 
County. Department Directors, Coordinators, Supervisors or Managers will be hired and 
dismissed with the consent of a majority of the Board of Supervisors.  
 
H. Prepare an annual operating budget for the County government in accordance with 
guidelines established by the State auditor’s office for approval by the Board of Supervisors. 
He shall be responsible for maintaining adequate financial and accounting records on all 
County business under his control.  
 
I. Serve as the Board’s representative in all circumstances where the Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, or a majority of the Board Members are not available.  
 
J. Perform all other duties delegated by the Board as required by law.  

Article IX 
Amendments 
A. The Bylaws may be amended by a recorded majority vote of the entire membership of 
the Board provided that written notice has been given to all members of the Board and a 
copy of the proposed amendment is sent with the notice, prior to said meeting.  



 
B. The Bylaws may be suspended in whole or in part only upon the unanimous vote of Board 
members present, relating to any matter before it. 



                        Board of Supervisors       January 2, 2024 

Russell County Page 1 
 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 

 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

2024 
GOVERNMENTAL CENTER 

6:00 P.M. 
 

January 2nd, Tuesday 
 

February 5th, Monday 
 

March 4th, Monday 
 

April 1st, Monday 
 

May 6th, Monday 
 

June 3rd, Monday 
 

July 1st, Monday 
 

August 5th, Monday 
 

September 2nd, Monday  
 

October 7th, Monday 
 

November 4th, Monday 
 

December 2nd, Monday 
 

• BOS Regular Board Meetings are on the first Monday of the month unless the BOS 
reschedules due to holidays, county events, emergencies, or schedules.    



                        Board of Supervisors       January 2, 2024 

Russell County Page 1 
 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S BUDGET MEETINGS 
 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY  
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025  
BUDGET MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
 
Date  Activity         
 
 
01/26/24 Letter of Budget Requests to Departments, Offices, & Agencies 
 
02/16/24 Departmental Budget Requests Due to County Administrator  
 
03/11/24 Budget Expenditures Compiled 
 
03/18/24 Revenue Projections Compiled 
 
03/25/24 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
04/01/24 Budget Committee Workshop 
 
04/01/24 Full Board of Supervisors Budget Work Session 
 
04/11/24 Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates  
 
04/18/24    Advertise Public Hearing for Budget and Tax Rates 
 
05/06/24 Hold Public Hearing on FY 2024/2025 Budget and Tax Rates 
 
06/03/24 Approve Budget at Regular June Meeting 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 1/2/24       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• December 11, 2023 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



December 11, 2023 

A regular monthly mee�ng of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, December 
11, 2023 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the mee�ng to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Chris�an 
 

Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Ka�e Paton, County Atorney 
 
Absent: 

None 

Invoca�on by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Mo�on made by Rebecca Dye, second Oris Chris�an and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Oris Chris�an, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 
Presenta�ons 
 
Plaques were presented to Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea and Oris Chris�an in apprecia�on for their service as 
members of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 13, 2023 MINUTES 
 
Mo�on made by Carl Rhea, second Oris Chris�an and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the November 13, 2023 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Oris Chris�an, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,294,180.74, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 
Commitee Appointments 
 

MOTION TO TABLE THE COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS UNTIL JANUARY 2024 
 

Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the commitee appointments un�l January 2024 board of supervisors mee�ng. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Oris Chris�an, Rebecca Dye and Carl Rhea 
 
MOTION FAILED. 
 

CARL RHEA WAS APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY HIGHWAY & SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 

Mo�on made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton any duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Carl Rhea to the Russell County Highway & Safety Commission for a (2) two-year term, said term 
ending December 31, 2025. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

MAXIE SKEEN REAPPOINTED TO THE SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA EMS COUNCIL 
 
Mo�on made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Maxie Skeen to the Southwest Virginia EMS Council for a (4) four-year term, said term ending 
December 31, 2027. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Oris Chris�an and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 
 



 
REBECCA DYE REAPPOINTED TO THE CPMT 

 
Mo�on made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Rebecca Dye to the Community Policy Management Team for a four (4) year term, said term 
ending December 31, 2027. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
  
Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Tara Dye to the Community Policy Management Team. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
MOTION FAILED. 
 
 

RICHARD LOCKRIDGE REAPPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 
Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Chris�an and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Richard Lockridge to the Russell County Industrial Authority for a four (4) year term, 
December 31, 2027. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

MOTION TO REAPPOINT TONY DODI TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton to reappoint Tony Dodi to the Russell County 
Industrial Development Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
MOTION FAILED. 
 

TOMMY SHRADER APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 

Mo�on made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Tommy Shrader to the Russell County Industrial Authority for a (4) four-year term, said term 
ending December 31, 2027. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
 
Citizens’ Comment 
 
 
 The Chair opened ci�zens’ comment period. 
 
The following ci�zens voiced their opposi�on to the proposed landfill at Moss III: 
 
Amy Branson, Castlewood. 
Josh Burgess, Cleveland 
Dirk Hall, Cleveland 
Jarred Ring, Castlewood 
Gary Hughes, Swords Creek 
Tammy Garret, Lebanon 
Tony Smith, Cleveland 
Jennifer Chumbley, Cleveland 
 
Svitlana Boyd, Lebanon asked if the Board could assist with the Zoning problem she has with the Town 
of Lebanon. 
 
Ka�e Paton, Lebanon thanked the Board and staff for their support during her tenure as County 
Atorney.  She looks forward to working with everyone as Clerk of the Circuit Court. 
 
The Chair closed public comment. 

ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABSTRACT OF VOTES 
 

1. Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to accept the Abstract of Votes as presented by the Russell County Registrar. 

  
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  
 

APPROVAL OF A COUNTY AND IDA TOBACCO REGION OPPORTUNITY FUND PERFORMANCE 
AGREEMENT 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve Russell County and the Russell County IDA Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund Performance 
Agreement in the amount of $146,000. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A DHCD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
 



Mo�on made by Oris Chris�an, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the DHCD Community Development Block Grant #19-14-36 (Belfast Waterline Extension, Phase 
II) Administrative & Conditional Closeout. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
None:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT DANTE DEPOT PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the VDOT Dante Depot Project Certification of Substantial Completion. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Chris�an, Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT NO-COST ADDITION RESOLUTION RTE. 836 EXTENSION 
 
Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT No-Cost Addition Resolution RTE. 836 Extension. 
 
The vote was 
Aye:  Davd Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RC SCHOOL BOARD REVERSION FUNDS APPROPRIATION & REALLOCATION 2% 
EMPLOYEE SALARY BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County School Board Reversion Funds Appropriation & Reallocation concerning the 2% 
employee salary increase by the General Assembly. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF THE RC DSS BOARD APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS CONCERNING A 2% EMPLOYEE SALARY 

INCREASE BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County DSS Board Appropriation of Funds concerning a 2% salary increase by the 
General Assembly. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 



APPROVAL OF A DCJS LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $542,000 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to  
approve a DCJS Law Enforcement Equipment Grant in the amount of $542,000. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A $3000 DONATION TO THE SHOP WITH A COP PROGRAM 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
donate $3000 to the Shop with a Cop Program for the Town of Honaker, Town of Lebanon and the 
Russell County Sheriff’s Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A LIBRARY OF VIRGINIA REVISED STATE GRANT-IN-AID FY 2024 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$128,394 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Library of Virginia Revised State Grant-In-Aid FY 2024 in the amount of $128,394. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDEM EMERGENCY PERFORMANCE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $7500 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate and accept a VDEM Emergency Management Performance Grant in the amount of $7500. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay: None 

BURN BAN LIFTED 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
lift the burn ban declaration effective immediately. 
 
 The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF A POTESTA MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERS & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT SIX-MONTH EXTENSION 
 



Motion made by Oris Christian, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Potesta Master Agreement for Engineers & Environmental Services Six Month Extension. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDH & RUSSELL COUNTY SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDH & Russell County Service Agreement. (Russell County Health Department). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County Operational Medical Director (OMD) Contract for Services. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RUSSELL COUNTY COAL HAUL ROAD PLAN RESOLUTION 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution- Russell County Coal Haul Road Plan – Rte 615 Gravel Lick Road 
Improvements in the amount of $100,000. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  none 
 

APPROVAL TO CHANGE A CL DALE PLAT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a CL Dale Construction Plat change in language as requested by the Planning Commission. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

CANNERY CLOSING DATE TABLED 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the cannery closing date. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF COUNTY HOLIDAY AND PAY SCHEDULE 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the county holiday and pay schedule as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO SET THE BOARD MEETING FOR JANUARY 02, 2024 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
set the Board of Supervisors meeting for Tuesday, January 02, 2024 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT DANTE ENGINEERING STUDY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the VDOT Dante Engineering Study. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO SEND A LETTER OPPOSING UTILITY RATE INCREASES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to send a letter opposing the rate increase to AEP, Kentucky Utilities 
and Old Dominion Power. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
_________________________                                       _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                              Chairperson 
 
 
 
  
  



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 1/2/24      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s December 2023 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s December 2023 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s December 2023 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• December 2023 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
Board of Supervisors Action Item B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 1/2/24      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Pre-Authorized Expenditures 

Request authorization of the County’s 2024 Pre-Authorized Payment of Monthly Expenditures: 

 
The list of general expenditures the Board approves annually to ensure the County 
complies with the Virginia Procurement Act which requires all expenditures to be within 
30 days or within the terms of the contracts.  The expenditures are monthly operational 
expenditures or approved contracts: 
 
Reoccurring Monthly, Quarterly, Semi-Annual, and Annual Operational Expenditures  
(i.e. Utilities, Credit Card Payments, Facility/Park/Vehicle Maintenance, Withholding 
payments (payroll), Debt service, Contracts, and Board approved expenditures) 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
Board Discretion. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to authorize the County’s Pre-Authorized Payment of Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-4 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

      Meeting: 1/2/24        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Executive Board 
 
Steve Breeding    Concurrent with Term 
Lou Ann Wallace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Carl Rhea     Concurrent with Term 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Planning Commission 
 
Oris Christian    Concurrent with Term 
 
Regional Jail Board  
 
Oris Christian    Concurrent with Term 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Authority  
 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 
Carl Rhea     Concurrent with Term  
 
Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO) (Workforce Dev. Board) 
 
Lou Ann Wallace    Concurrent with Term 
 
Budget/Finance Committee 

  
 Vacant     One-Year Term 

Vacant     One-Year Term 
 
Coal Road Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace    Concurrent with Term 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-4 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

      Meeting: 1/2/24        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Finney Community Center 
 
David Compton    Two-Year Term  January 3, 2024 
Edward Tiller    Two-Year Term  January 3, 2024 
 
Spearhead Trails-Trailblazers 

  
Kelsay King     Four-Year Term  January 4, 2024 







 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-16 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 1/2/24         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for January 2024: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. VACo Preliminary Legislative Program 2024………………………………………D-1 

 
2. 2024 Southwest VA Legislative Reception (1/31/24) & VACo Local                                               

Government Day & Reception (2/1/24)………………………… ………….....…….D-2 
 

3. Governor’s Recommended Budget Bills (FY24 Caboose & Biennial Budget..D-3 
 

4. State and Local Economic Interests and Financial Disclosure Statements &                                    
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Training……………………………………….D-4 

 
5. Lebanon Fire Department – RC Courthouse Fire Chiefs Report………………..D-5 

 
6. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-6 

 
REQUESTS 

  
7. RC Six-Year General Reassessment Services Request for Proposals                                              

(RFP) Contract……………………………………………………………..………….....D-7 
 

8. Eagleview GSD County-wide Pictometry Contract for Flight Services of the                                    
County – General Reassessment Services…………………………………………D-8 

 
9. IDA Commonwealth’s Development Opportunity Fund Performance                                       

Agreement & Grant for the Tate Corp. (Bush Building) - $700,000…………….D-9  
 

10. Community Development Block Grant #21-21-14 – Dante Regional Sewer                                              
Line Extension Project Contract Amendment #1 – Supplemental Funding -                        
$1,000,000………………………………………………………………………………...D-10 
 

11. DCJS VA Services, Training, Officers, Prosecution (VSTOP) Formula Grant                                
Program for Continuation and New Applicants - $133,333……………………...D-11 

 
12. RC Disposal Truck Purchase – State Contract - $212,000……………………….D-12 

 
13. Local Law Enforcement (LOLE) Grant Program – FY 23 - $2,512………………D-13 

 
14. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request Form – FY24 - $116,191.92……………D-14 

 
15. Saint Paul Fire Department – EMS First Response Resolution…………………D-15 

 
16. Honaker & Castlewood Canneries……………………………………………………D-16 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Board Discretion.  















COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
 

Compensation Board 
 

P.O. Box 710 

Richmond, Virginia 23218-0710 
 

 

     JEFFREY PALMORE                           CRAIG BURNS 

                  CHAIRMAN                                STACI HENSHAW 
                                 EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 

 

       ROBYN DE SOCIO                         
      EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

December 20, 2023 
 

EMAIL MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  The Honorable Lenny Millholland, President, Virginia Sheriffs’ Association 
The Honorable Anton Bell, President, Virginia Association of Commonwealth’s 

Attorneys 
The Honorable Michael Stephens, President, Treasurers’ Association of Virginia 
The Honorable Ann Burkholder, President, Commissioners of the Revenue Association 
of Virginia 
The Honorable Teresa Dobbins, President, Virginia Court Clerks’ Association 

Derek Almarode, President, Virginia Association of Regional Jails 
Michelle Gowdy, Executive Director, Virginia Municipal League 

  Dean Lynch, Executive Director, Virginia Association of Counties 
 
FROM: Robyn M. de Socio, Executive Secretary 
 

RE: Overview of Compensation Board Funding Contained in the Governor’s Recommended 
Budget Bills (FY24 Caboose and FY25/26 Biennial Budget) 

 
Attached please find an overview of Governor Youngkin’s budget proposals submitted today to 
the General Assembly. Based upon our preliminary analysis, this overview presents items that 

directly affect Constitutional Officers and Aid to Localities funding on their behalf. If additional 
analysis is needed based on these and any other proposals found in the detailed budget 

document, we will make that available as soon as possible. 
 
Please feel free to contact me or Charlotte Lee should you need additional information or have 
any questions concerning the enclosed summary. 

 
Attachment 
cc: Compensation Board Members 

 The Honorable Margaret "Lyn" McDermid, Secretary of Administration 
 Compensation Board Staff 
 Kelly Richards, Analyst, Department of Planning and Budget 
 John Jones, Executive Director, Virginia Sheriffs’ Association 
 Amanda Howie, Executive Director, Virginia Association of Commonwealth’s Attorneys 
 Jane Chambers, Director, Commonwealth’s Attorneys’ Services Council 
 Alan Albert, O’Hagan Meyer 

John “Chip” Dicks, Gentry Locke 
Patrice Lewis, Gentry Locke 
Joseph Horbal, Legislative Coordinator, Commissioners of the Revenue Association of Virginia 
Michael Edwards, Kemper Consulting 
Dylan Bishop, Virginia Law Enforcement Sheriffs’ Association 

 Janet Areson, Virginia Municipal League 
 Katie Boyle, Virginia Association of Counties 
 
 
 
s:/biennial budget FY25-26/2024 GA Session/budget bill/gov bud bill 12-23 association ltr 
  

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF COMPENSATION BOARD FUNDING 

INCLUDED IN THE GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDED BUDGET  

FOR FY24 (CABOOSE) AND FY25/26 BIENNIUM 

 

December 20, 2023 

 

FY24 “Caboose” Budget Bill (HB29/SB29) Budget Proposals 

 

Sheriffs and Regional Jails 

 

• A $1,472,297 reduction in funding is included based on the elimination of operating funds 

associated with the Bristol City Jail, which closed at the end of June, 2022; 

 

• A $776,393 reduction in funding is included based on the elimination of operating funds 

associated with the Hampton Roads Regional Jail, which is scheduled to close by April, 

2024. 

 

Jails 

 

• A $15 million reduction in per diem funding is included based on actual inmate population 

reductions and projected growth in jail populations in FY24. 

 

 

FY25/26 Biennial Budget Bill (HB30/SB30) Budget Proposals 

 

All Constitutional Officers 

 

• Funding to support a 1% across-the-board salary increase for Constitutional Officers, 

Regional Jail Superintendents, Finance Directors and their Compensation Board funded 

employees, is included in the second year of the biennial budget effective July 1, 2025, as 

well as for state employees effective June 10, 2025; 

 

• Additional funding is provided to support two 1% bonus payments to state supported local 

employees and state employees, effective December 1, 2024, and December 1, 2025; 

 

• Additional funding of $159,889 is included in each year of the biennium to support the 

additional cost of policy-based salary increases due to increased populations for 

Constitutional Officers whose localities met a population-based threshold (technical, salary 

amounts already implemented, specific amounts identified in detail by office below); 

 

• Language is included in the biennial budget bill to move projected savings of $9.4 million 

accruing from vacant positions in constitutional offices in the first year to a reserve fund, 

and to remove equivalent funds in the second year, whereby such amounts in the reserve 

fund can be utilized as needed to reimburse expenses incurred within established budgets 

for constitutional officers if vacancy levels are reduced and vacant positions are filled; 

 

• No performance-based increases are included for Constitutional Officers and their 

employees or for state employees; 

 

• No additional funding is included to address staffing standards or the restoration of prior 

salary fund reductions to unfunded or underfunded positions resulting from prior budget 

reductions. 
 

 

 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

Sheriffs and Regional Jails 

 

 

• A $1,472,297 reduction in funding in each year of the biennium is included based on the 

elimination of operating funds associated with the Bristol City Jail, which closed in June, 

2022; 

 

• A $14,258,355 reduction in funding in each year of the biennium is included based on the 

elimination of operating funds associated with the Hampton Roads Regional Jail, which is 

scheduled to close by April, 2024; 

 

• Additional $35,440 in each year of the biennium is provided based on previously 

implemented population-based salary increases for Sheriffs in Prince Edward County and the 

City of Chesapeake; 

 

• An additional $500,000 in non-general funds from the Commonwealth Opioid Abatement 

and Remediation Fund is provided in the first year of the biennium on a one-time basis to 

establish a jail-based substance use disorder treatment program in local and regional jails; 

 

• Additional $1,269,332 in each year of the biennium is provided to fully annualize the cost of 

previously allocated behavioral health and medical treatment positions. 

 

Jails 

 

• A $15 million reduction in per diem funding in each year of the biennium is included based 

on actual inmate population reductions and projected growth in jail populations over the 

next biennium. 

 

Commonwealth’s Attorneys 

 

• Additional $7,849 in each year of the biennium is provided based on a previously 

implemented population-based salary increase to the Commonwealth’s Attorney in the City 

of Chesapeake.  

 

Circuit Court Clerks 

 

• Additional $13,740 in each year of the biennium is provided based on a previously 

implemented population-based salary increase to the Circuit Court Clerk in Prince Edward 

County; 

 

• A $75,000 reduction is included associated with the elimination of language that provided 

for an online foreclosure listing pilot program in James City County. 

 

Treasurers 

 

• Additional $51,430 in each year of the biennium is provided based on previously 

implemented population-based salary increases to Treasurers in Prince Edward and York 

Counties and the City of Chesapeake. 

 

Finance Directors 

 

• No program specific changes are included in the Governor’s Budget Bill recommendations.  

 

 

 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

Commissioners 

 

• Additional $51,430 in each year of the biennium is provided based on previously 

implemented population-based salary increases to Commissioners of the Revenue in Prince 

Edward and York Counties and the City of Chesapeake. 

 

Administration 

 

• No program specific changes are included in the Governor’s Budget Bill recommendations. 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

Russell County BOS 

VDOT Update  
January 2, 2024 

Board Action Requests 

Assuming the Board acted on the coal severance tax resolution last month, the Residency has no requests for 
action this month.  
 
  

Maintenance Activities - Completed   
 

Maintenance activities were largely focused on tree removal / clean-up, brush cutting, working gravel roads and 

responded to multiple small winter weather events.  

 Maintenance work (spreading gravel, blading) was conducted on Routes 618, 621, 661 and 721. 

 Shoulder repairs were completed on portions of Route 80. 

 Tree clean-up / removal was completed on Routes 603, 640, 643 and 645. 

 Boom Ax / Tree Trimming & Brush cutting operations were completed on portions for the following routes: 

620, 646, 647, 653, 661, 692 and 743. 

 

Maintenance Activities - Planned 

• Slope stabilization / slide repair on Route 621.  This work as a ‘time of year’ restriction on it which 

prevents work from being done during certain months due to environmental concerns.   

• Boom ax work on various routes throughout the County.  

• Pavement Repairs (machine patching) on Route 615 (Reference previous requests for resolution) 
 

• Debris removal on various routes (down trees and rocks/slides). 
 

• Removal of dead trees on Routes 80 (Hayter's Gap), 71, and 65. 
 

• Pipe replacement on Route 615. 
 

• Ditching at various locations through the County.  
 

• Streambank stabilization on Routes 613 (Moccasin Valley) and 661 (Artrip) 
 

• Drainage / slope stabilization in the median of Route 19 (Bypass) near Coal Tipple Hollow. 
 
 

Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 

The residency is beginning plan sketch preparation and initiating the environmental review process for projects 

planned for the coming construction season. 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

 

 

Non — VDOT Projects 

 

Pure Salmon Project 

No new information to report this month. 

 

Three Rivers Destination Center 

No new activity this month on this project. 

 



RUSSELL COUNTY 

VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

(RFP) 

General Reassessment of Real Property 

The County of Russell, Virginia is soliciting proposals from qualified firms to provide services to 

complete the 2025 General Reassessment of Real Property in the county. The General 

Reassessment must be completed in accordance with Section 58.1-3252 of the Code of 

Virginia, 1950, as amended. Proposals will be received by the County Administrator, 

Government Center, 137 Highland Drive, Suite A, P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 until 

3:00 P.M. on January 31, 2024 at which time proposals will be opened.  Proposals shall be 

clearly marked on the outside envelope: “Russell County General Reassessment of Real Property 

RFP.” It shall be the proposer's responsibility to determine their method of transmittal such that 

their proposal will arrive in the County’s office prior to the scheduled deadline. A copy of the RFP 

at Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us.  The request for proposals, the awarded proposal, and 

negotiated agreement will be become part of the contract documents.  Any questions concerning 

the RFP, please call 276-889-8000.  

mailto:Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Steve Breeding
Highlight



1 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
VIRGINIA 

 

 
 

Request For Proposal (RFP) 
 for 

General Reassessment Services  
 
 

Issue Date: January 2, 2024 
Proposal Due Date and Hour: January 31, 2024, at 3:00 PM 

 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive, Suite A 

P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

2 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
ISSUE DATE: January 2, 2024 
General Reassessment Services 

(TO BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED) 
GENERAL INFORMATION FORM 

QUESTIONS: All inquiries for information regarding this solicitation should be directed to: Lonzo Lester, 
County Administrator, Phone: (276) 889-8000; faxed to (276) 889-8011, or e-mail:  
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 

 

DUE DATE: Sealed Proposals will be received by January 31, 2024, up to and including 3:00PM. 
Failure to submit proposals to the correct location by the designated date and hour will result in 
disqualification. 

 
ADDRESS: Proposals should be mailed, or hand delivered to: Russell County Administration, 137 
Highland Drive, Suite A, P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, Virginia 24266.  

 
COMPANY INFORMATION/SIGNATURE: In compliance with this Request for Proposal and to all 
conditions imposed herein and hereby incorporated by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to 
furnish the services and goods in accordance with the attached signed proposal or as mutually agreed 
upon by subsequent negotiation. 

 
 

Full Legal Name (print) Federal Taxpayer Number (ID#) Contractor’s Registration 

Business Name / DBA Name / TA Name and Address Payment Address Purchase Order Address 

Contact Name/Title Signature (ink) Date 

Telephone Number Fax Number Toll Free Number E-mail Address 

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


  
 

3 
 

NOTICES 
 

Copies of the Proposal Documents may be obtained at the County Administrator’s Office located in the County Office 
Building 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia at no charge.  The RFP may also be requested with 
Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 
 
This service is being competitively offered to comply with the requirement that the County obtain a general 
reassessment of all real property no less frequently than every six years and December 31, 2024 will complete the 
current six-year cycle. 
 
Inquiries regarding this solicitation should be directed to Lonzo Lester, County Administrator at E-Mail: 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The purpose of this RFP is to establish a contract with a qualified firm, hereinafter called the “Contractor” to provide 
data collection services for all real estate parcels in Russell County, Virginia.  The Contractor shall be properly licensed 
by the Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation’s Appraisal Board.  The collection of data 
shall be provided with an emphasis on accurately reviewing, and describing each of the approximately 22,405 parcels 
of land in the County.  At a minimum, the Contractor will either (1) use Pictometry to evaluate, measure, inspect and 
record data from each parcel for which Pictometry is available or (2) physically visit, inspect, and record date from 
each parcel for which Pictometry is not available.  The Contractor shall always be expected to perform their services 
in a professional manner that promotes exemplary public relations. 
 
Basic work to be performed by the Contractor: 
 
Personally inspect each parcel of property in the County (either through Pictometry or through site visit), digitally 
recording its ownership, physical address, the property lines, all improvements, signs, tanks, portable structures, etc. 
and any other elements of value. 
 
During physical site visits, make a complete exterior and reasonable interior inspection which will include measuring 
and sketching each residence and all other buildings to the nearest tenth of an inch.  Measure all site improvements.  
Digitally photograph the front and rear of each residence, including mobile and manufactured homes, and any other 
improvements that exist on the property.   
 
  

mailto:Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


  
 

4 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
General Reassessment Services 

 
I PURPOSE: The intent and purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to establish a contract through competitive 

negotiation with a professional appraisal firm to complete a general reassessment of real estate in the County of Russell, 
Virginia herein after referred to as “County.” 

 
II BACKGROUND: 

 
A. General: The County is located in Southwest Virginia. The County is governed by an elected seven member 

Board of Supervisors who appoints a County Administrator.  
 

B. Specific: Russell County is approximately 477 square miles and has approximately 26,681 Pictometry parcels which 
includes: 22,405 real estate parcels; 898 Mineral parcels; 2,415 mobile home parcels, and 963 non-taxable parcels. 
The last general assessment was effective January 1, 2019.  The Commissioner of the Revenue is Randy Williams.   

 
III   STATEMENT OF NEED: The County desires the services of a Contractor that can provide a complete reassessment of 

all property within Russell County, Virginia, and the classification of all real property in accordance with State 
requirements, excluding public service properties. Values shall be at one hundred percent (100%) of fair market value as 
required by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

 
Offerors are being requested to provide line item pricing, breaking down and defining each component/item. The 
Contractor must be able to use the County’s computerized property valuation system. The County will provide computer 
hardware, access to the County’s software, and office space. Offerors are requested to include a per parcel rate to be 
used for invoicing purposes if the Contractor completes more or less parcels than listed in the above total.  Offerors are 
requested to include a “not to exceed” price to complete all work for this project. 

 
IV REQUIREMENTS: 

 

A. Contractor Requirements: 
 
1. Tasks: The Contractor, as a minimum, will be responsible for the following requirements. Each Offeror is requested to 

submit their proposal methodology, operational plan, and pricing, outlining how each of the following requirements will be 
performed. Offerors are requested to include their definition of each of these components. 

 
a) Project Planning. 
b) Perform Market/Sales Data Analysis/Calibrate Cost/Depreciation Tables. 
c) Field Work/Data Collections. 

1. On Site Visits to properties is required to for the collection of field data of all residential & commercial 
properties, taxable and nontaxable. 

2. Data entry of all missing fields and update information into county computer system. 
3. General values and perform statistical analysis. 

d) Evaluation Review & Proofing. 
e) Monthly Status Reports for County. 
f) Preliminary Evaluation.  
g) Informal Assessor Hearings. 
h) Formal Hearings with Board of Equalization. 

2. Schedule/Time frame: Offerors are to state their proposal schedule for completing the tasks as outlined above. The entire 
reassessment process must be completed by December 31, 2024. All fieldwork and preliminary appeals must be completed 
and complete reassessed values must be to the Board of Equalization (BOE) upon their appointment. The 10% retainer 
will be withheld if all work is not finished by December 31, 2024. 

3. Delays: The Contractor will not be held responsible for any delays resulting from hardware or software failures caused by 
the County.  

4. Sales Data: The Contractor will complete a comprehensive sales analysis prior to the appraisal of any real property in the 
County. This analysis will contain sufficient number and variety of valid real estate transactions to establish a basis of 
comparability. Pertinent information regarding these transactions will be recorded in a format agreed upon by the 
contractor and the County, and the results will be presented to the County as agreed upon in their Contractor’s proposed 
time frame as accepted by the County. This sales analysis will be available for public inspection and shall become the 



  
 

5 
 

property of Russell County at the completion of the reassessment. This work will be ongoing to include valid sales up to 
September 2024. 

5. Sales and Feature Tables: The reassessment will be conducted using the County’s computerized property valuation 
system. The program value over rides will not be allowed. The Contractor will be required to become sufficiently familiar 
with this system in order to update the system.  

6. Appraisal Cards: The County will provide field appraisal cards. The cards will be provided at the beginning of the 
project and all appraisals will be recorded using these cards. The cards shall show factors upon which value is based, 
such as, construction, age, size; condition, depreciation, of each building or structure. The cards may also contain an 
outline or sketch of all major building improvements and will also display pricing data for each building along with 
the owner’s name, address, legal description and map number. Some data required by the county system may not be 
included on the cards. The Contractor will be required to gather this data as part of their fieldwork. Clerical staff, under 
the supervision of the contractor, will be responsible for updating the County’s assessment data files, and new values 
will be generated solely from the computerized assessment system.  County reserves the right to periodically check 
Contractor’s work for accuracy and conformance with County’s requirements. 

7. Mobile Homes: The County will provide field record cards for all mobile homes assessed in the County. The location 
shall be identified by tax map number and/or site address. Mobile homes must be appraised by the contractor. The 
Contractor shall provide the County with a monthly report indicating those mobile homes that are not found. The 
Contractor shall also generate a new field appraisal card showing the make, size, condition, estimated model year of 
manufacture, owner, site address, tax map number of any mobile homes found by the Contractor that have not been placed 
on record by the County at the time of the contractor’s field inspection. Copies of these new field appraisal cards shall also 
be provided to the County on a monthly basis. 

8. Residential Properties: The contractor shall complete an exterior inspection of each residence. The inspector will 
confirm, correct, or gather information to complete all information requested on the field appraisal cards, including the 
exterior dimensions which produce the sketch. The Contractor will observe and adjust for such factors as exterior 
condition, physical depreciation, functional and economic obsolescence, and general quality of construction. All 
information so gathered shall be recorded on the field appraisal cards. 

9. Farm Properties: The Contractor will confirm, correct, or gather information to complete all fields on the field appraisal 
cards, including the exterior dimensions which produce the sketch. All farm buildings and structures will be noted as 
additional features on the card, and these improvements shall be appraised at their fair market value. . 

10. Commercial Properties: The Contractor will confirm, correct or gather information to complete all fields on the field 
appraisal cards. To the extent that such information is available replacement cost, less any physical depreciation, 
functional or economic obsolescence; income and expense data; and market data will be used in combination to assist in 
appraising with the property. The Contractor shall review and update the improvements. 

11. Apartments: All apartments of four or more connected dwelling units designed or redesigned for rental occupancy and all 
groups of apartment buildings are to be classified as apartment property.  

12. Industrial Properties: Industrial plants shall be appraised in the same manner as other commercial properties. All yard 
improvements shall be listed individually and a sketch shall be made and shown in their proper location and size with the 
name of the building as known to the industry shown.  The Contractor will confirm, correct or gather all information 
necessary. 

13. Tax Exempt Properties: The Contractor will confirm, correct or gather information to complete all fields on the field 
appraisal cards. To the extent that such information is available replacement cost, less any physical depreciation, 
functional or economic obsolescence; will be used in combination to assist in appraising tax exempt properties. 

14. Mineral Rights and Mineral Lands: The Contractor will confirm, correct, or gather information to complete all fields on 
the field appraisal card. 

15. Cell Towers: Cell towers shall be appraised at market value in the same manner as Commercial properties using 
acceptable appraisal standards. The County will provide the contractor with a listing of cell towers that differentiate 
between those towers assessed locally and those towers assessed by the SCC. 

16. New Construction/Property Splits/Boundary Adjustments: The Contractor shall coordinate efforts with the County 
Assessor in appraising new construction, additions, property splits, and boundary line adjustments. Every reasonable 
effort will be made to ensure that this function is not duplicated by the firm or by the jurisdiction or omitted by both. The 
proposal shall include an estimated deadline for completion of new construction by the Contractor. 

17. Notification: Residents will be notified, either in person or by printed material left on the property when their 
dwelling/property is inspected by an appraiser. Printed material must indicate a contact person’s name with a listed 
phone number indicating where to reach the appraiser. 

18. Contractor Qualifications and Personnel: The County shall have the right to review and approve all personnel involved 
in the appraisal of real property in Russell County. It should be noted that all appraisers serve at the discretion of Russell 
County and the terms of the final contract between the contractor and the County of Russell shall clearly empower the 
County to remove unsatisfactory appraisers from the project. The Contractor shall meet qualifications and criteria 



  
 

6 
 

established for such work by the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
a) The Contractor must employ a sufficient number of qualified and experienced employees, at all times, to 

perform the work expeditiously on a timely and controlled basis. Complete instruction and direction of all 
members of the personnel connected with the reassessment shall be supplied by the Contractor. (Offerors are 
requested to include in their proposal the names and qualifications of individuals that will be working on this 
project). 

b) The Contractor shall make personnel available on-site during normal working hours in the office provided by 
the County. 

c) No employee of the Contractor is to be deemed an employee or agent of the County and is not entitled to any 
benefits from the County. The Project Manager in charge of this appraisal program and other key personnel 
shall not be transferred away from the County and the work to be performed under this contract, or shifted, or 
replaced, without the written consent of the County having been first obtained. The County has the right to 
approve or reject all personnel working on the project. 

d) All field personnel shall display a personal identification badge that shall include name, photograph, 
company name, County name and employee’s title and signature. 

e) All field personnel shall be employees of the Contractor. The County Assessor, including any assistants, will 
work closely with the Contractor’s employees. 

f) The Contractor’s appraisal personnel responsible for final values should preferably have a minimum of three (3) 
years of experience in providing services similar to our requirements. Other field personnel not responsible 
for actual values, may be employed at the discretion of the contractor, without the 3 year experience 
requirement. 

g) The Contractor shall provide the name, title, address, e-mail address and telephone/facsimile number of the 
primary contact for our account if awarded the contract. 

h) The Contractor must be licensed to perform reassessment services as required by the applicable rules, 
regulations, and laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

19. Laws to be Observed: The Contractor is assumed to be familiar with all Federal, State and local laws, codes, ordinances and 
regulations which in any matter affect those engaged or employed in the work or in any way affect the conduct of work. 
No plea of understanding or ignorance on the part of the Contractor will in any way serve to modify the provisions of the 
contract. The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, orders, codes, ordinances 
and regulations in any manner affecting the conduct of the work and the Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the 
County, its officers, agents and servants against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such 
law, ordinance, regulation, order of decree, whether by Contractor or its employees, or anyone acting in the Contractor’s 
behalf. 

20. Vehicle Identification: The Contractor shall submit a listing of all regularly used vehicles, driver’s name, description 
and vehicle tag number to the Russell County Sheriff’s Office, The Lebanon Police Department and the Honaker 
Police Department at the beginning of the job. Vehicles shall be provided by Contractor. 

21. Public Relations: The Contractor and its employees shall endeavor to promote friendly relations with taxpayers and the 
general public. Any news releases, media interviews, brochures and other publicity or public information must be 
approved by or issued by the County. 

22. Public Input: Pursuant to the requirements of Section 58.1-3330 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, all 
property owners in Russell County shall be notified of changes in assessed values of their property. Following this 
notification, the appointed Contractor shall hold informal hearings to meet with property owners in order to explain, discuss 
and hear appeals concerning values established. An ample number of hearing days shall be allotted by the Contractor 
to handle the entire number of appeals filed by property owners and include a minimum of fifteen-days (15) days following 
the mailing of notices of the change in assessed value Property owners shall be able to file their appeals of their assessments 
via phone call, letter, in person, or electronically. The Contractor shall keep a log/spreadsheet of all appeals received 
indicating property owner, date of appeal, method of appeal and disposition of appeal. The Contractor shall respond to all 
appeals received, postmarked, or time stamped within the allotted fifteen-days (15) days or additional time if warranted due 
to a heavy volume of appeals. It is the intent of the County that all appellants shall receive an informal hearing prior to 
an appeal to the Board of Equalization. A minimum of fifteen (15) minutes shall be allotted by the Contractor for each 
appeal according to the number and type of properties they are appealing. An ample number of qualified assessors shall be 
on-site to hear appeals. Hearing dates and times shall be varied during the appeal period. A minimum of two (2) weekdays 
shall include night hours until 7 p.m. and at least two (2) Saturdays shall be provided for appeals of at least four (4) hours 
each. The Contractor shall ensure that assessors hearing appeals endeavor to explain and demonstrate to each appealing 
property owner how they arrived at the changes in assessed values. The Contractor shall use sales studies, aerial 
photography, sales of comparable properties among other things to demonstrate how the appealed assessed value was 
reached. Appealing property owners shall be advised when to expect a notice from the assessor(s) of any changes or no 
changes to assessed values due to the filed appeal.  Following such meetings with property owners, the Contractor shall 
make any necessary field reviews of disputed properties and shall make any appropriate adjustments in value. Notices of 



  
 

7 
 

any changes/no changes in assessed values as a result of the filed appeals shall be mailed to the property owners before 
December 15, 2024. 

23. Board of Equalization:  Following the general reassessment, the County is required by law to appoint a Board of 
Equalization (BOE). The BOE shall establish meeting dates, times and places, to receive complaints from property owners 
regarding appraised values. The Project Manager or representative will be available as needed for consultations and 
questions resulting from the meetings of the BOE and all informal hearings following the completion of the work until all 
complaints are heard and disposed of, to assist in the settlement of complaints and to defend the values placed upon the 
various properties. These services shall be provided at no additional cost to the County in the case of complaints as to 
assessed valuations. 

24. Printing: Except as previously noted, the Contractor shall be responsible for the printing cost associated with the 
reappraisal project. Printing shall include notices of value and other required forms. Public information pamphlets, if done, 
are the County’s responsibility. It shall be the joint responsibility of the County and the Contractor to design these items.  
The County shall have all final approval on all materials sent to County residents 

25. Valuation Methodology: 
A. Valuation General 

The contractor shall compute to the nearest one-hundred dollars ($100) the value of all properties identified in 
these specifications.  A minimum of two approaches to value from the following three: market, cost or income, must 
be employed for all income-producing property. Income-producing property includes, but is not necessarily 
limited to, the following types: primarily commercial multiple-use properties; apartments over eight units; hotels 
and motels; storage, warehouse and distribution facilities; discount and department stores; shopping centers 
and malls; supermarkets; small retail properties; office buildings; medical office buildings; research and 
development facilities; and properties within industrial parks. 
All valuation testing must be reviewed and approved by the assessors before the commencement of valuation 
production. The requirements for each of the three major approaches to value, land valuation and personal property 
valuation are outlined in the following: 

1. Residential Property 
a) Comparable Sales 

The contractor shall employ a comparable sales valuation approach. The contractor’s analysis of the 
factors used to select comparable sales shall be provided to the assessor for their review prior to 
valuation. 

b) Cost Approach 
The contractor shall analyze local building costs and trends and shall revise the replacement cost 
pricing schedules to be used in determining the valuation of appropriate properties. 
Subsequent to the selection of replacement cost pricing schedules and the establishment of land 
values, the contractor shall analyze the sales of improved properties in order to derive an estimate 
of physical and functional depreciation and economic obsolescence. 
After this analysis, depreciation tables, based upon the condition, desirability, and usefulness of a 
building relative to its actual age, shall be revised as necessary. After approval by the assessors, 
these tables shall be used to estimate the depreciation of comparable subject properties. 

2. Commercial/Industrial Property 
a) Cost Approach 

The contractor shall analyze local building costs and trends and shall revise the replacement cost 
pricing schedules to be used in determining the value of appropriate properties. 
Subsequent to the selection of replacement cost pricing schedules and the establishment of land 
values, the contractor shall analyze the sales of improved properties in order to derive an estimate 
of physical and functional depreciation and economic obsolescence. 
After this analysis, depreciation tables, based upon the condition, desirability, and usefulness of a 
building relative to its actual age, shall be revised as necessary. After approval by the assessors, 
these tables shall be used to estimate the depreciation of subject properties. 

b) Income Approach 
The contractor shall review and analyze current income and expense information furnished by parcel 
owners, prepared as a result of property owner interviews or obtained from third party sources, 
giving due consideration to factors affecting the valuation of income-producing properties. A 
report containing documentation to support the development and derivation of rent schedules, 
expense ratios and capitalization rates shall be submitted to the assessors for review prior to the 
commencement of valuation field review activities. The County will pay postage for mailing 
requests for income data. 



  
 

8 
 

A value determined by any of the accepted methods for the income approach to valuation shall be 
made for each income-producing property. 

c) Comparable Sales 
The contractor shall employ a comparable sales valuation approach. The contractor’s analysis of the 
factors used to select comparable sales shall be provided to the assessors for their review prior to 
valuation. 

d) Land Valuation 
The contractor shall analyze recent sales of comparable properties either within the County, or 
within an agreed upon area of the state, and/or land residuals if there are insufficient sales. The 
contractor shall evaluate all factors affecting the market value of lots and parcels including the 
quality of the neighborhoods, zoning restrictions, size, frontage, depth, shape, topography and all 
other factors considered relevant in the establishment of land values.  Based on this analysis, the 
contractor shall develop appropriate land base unit values and shall establish land valuations for 
each parcel of real property within the scope of these specifications 

B. County Requirements: The County will provide the following: 
1. Office Arrangements: Offerors are requested to submit a recommendation as to their estimated 

requirements for office arrangements. The County will be responsible for providing the agreed upon office 
arrangements. The County will furnish all necessary utilities such as power, water, heat, air conditioning, 
computer hardware and local telephone service. 

2. Computer Workstations: Offerors are requested to submit a recommendation as to their requirements for 
computer workstations. The County will be responsible for providing the agreed upon computer 
workstations. A workstation will be provided for clerical staff. 

3. Forms and appraisal cards: The County will provide the Contractor with appraisal cards and data 
collection forms as described above. 

4. Tax Maps: A complete set of tax maps for use by the contractor and access to map updates and property 
records. A digital version of this information can also be provided. 

5. Postage: Mailing of the notices of change in assessed value after said notices are prepared and delivered to the 
County by the contractor. The County will be responsible for the postage necessary for mailing notices of 
value. 

6. Pictometry, Topography, Flood Plain Maps: Access to these can be provided by the County. Pictometry is 
detailed oblique aerial photography that shows buildings, land, etc. Measurements including height, length, 
and width can be taken directly from the Pictometry. 

C. Termination of Contract: The contract may be terminated by the County for the following reasons: 
1. Failure of the Contractor to start the work on the date specified. 
2. Reasonable evidence that the progress being made by the Contractor is insufficient to complete the work 

within the specified time at the sole discretion of the County. 
3. Failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with any requirement of the contract. 

      Before the contract may be terminated, the Contractor and its surety must be notified in writing by the 
County of the conditions which make termination of the contract imminent. Ten (10) days after this notice is 
given, if a satisfactory effort has not been made by the Contractor or its surety to correct the condition, the 
County may declare the contract terminated, notify the Contractor and its surety accordingly, and pursue any right 
and remedy under contract and bond (s). 
       In the event the contract is terminated, the County reserves the right to take possession of all completed 
work, work in progress, material, software, documentation, or any other part of the work, to account for said work 
and material and to use the same to complete the project in accordance with the contract specifications and the 
provisions and conditions of the bond (s) attached to the contract. 

D. Contract Administration: 
1. The Contract Administrator, designated by the County, for this contract and shall use all powers under the 

contract to enforce its faithful performance. 
2. The Contract Administrator shall determine the amount, quantity, acceptability, fitness of all aspects of the 

services and shall decide all other questions in connection with the services. The Contract Administrator, or 
designee, shall not have the authority to approve changes in the services which alter the concept or which call for 
an extension of time for this contract. Any modifications made must be authorized by Russell County through a 
written amendment to the contract. 

 
 
 
 



  
 

9 
 

V. PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: 
 

A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 

1. RFP Response: In order to be considered for selection, Offerors must submit a complete response to this RFP.   
     One (1) original and three (3) copies of each proposal must be submitted to: 

 
Lonzo Lester, MBA, CPC, VCO 

County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 

P.O. Box 1208, Suite A 
Lebanon VA 24266 

 
Identify on outside of envelope: Russell County General Reassessment RFP 

 
RFP Due date/Opening date and hour: February 1, 2024, 3:00 P.M. 

 
The Offeror shall make no other distribution of the proposal. 

 
2. Proposal Preparations: 

a. Proposal shall be signed by an authorized representative of the Offeror. All information requested should be 
submitted. The Procurement Manager will review all proposals to ensure required information is included. 
Failure to submit all information requested may result in a request to submit the missing information. 
Proposals which are substantially incomplete or lack key information may be rejected as incomplete. 
Mandatory requirements are those required by law or regulation or are such that they cannot be waived and 
are not subject to negotiation. 

b. Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated by a Committee as designated by the County. 
c. Proposal should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straight forward, concise description of 

capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFP. Emphasis should be placed on completeness and clarity 
of content. 

d. Proposals should be organized in the order in which the requirements are presented in the RFP. All pages of 
the proposal should be numbered. Each paragraph in the proposal should reference the paragraph number of 
the corresponding section of the RFP. It is also helpful to cite the paragraph number, sub letter, and repeat the 
text of the requirements as it appears in the RFP. If a response covers more than one page. The proposal 
should contain a table of contents which cross references the RFP requirements. Information which the offeror 
desires to present that does not fall within any of the requirements of the RFP should be inserted at an 
appropriate place or be attached at the end of the proposal and designated as additional material. Proposals 
that are not organized in this manner risk elimination from consideration if the evaluators are unable to find 
where the RFP requirements are specifically addressed. 

e. Each copy of the proposal should be bound or contained in a single volume where practical. All documentation 
submitted with the proposal should be contained in that single volume. 

f. Ownership of all data, materials and documentation originated and prepared for the County pursuant to the 
RFP shall belong exclusively to the County and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act. Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by an Offeror shall not be 
subject to public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; however, the Offeror must invoke 
the protections of Section 2.2-4342D of the Code of Virginia, in writing, either before or at the time the data 
or other materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. The proprietary or trade 
secret material submitted must be identified by some distinct method such as highlighting or underlining and 
must indicate only the specific words, figures, or paragraphs that constitute trade secret or proprietary 
information. The classification of an entire proposal document, line item prices and/or total proposal prices 
as proprietary or trade secrets is not acceptable and will result in rejection of the proposal. 

 
B. SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS: Proposals should be as thorough and as detailed as possible so that the County may 

properly evaluate your capabilities to provide the required services. Offerors are required to submit the following 
information/items as a complete proposal: 

 
1. The return of the RFP general information form and addenda, if any, signed and completed as required. 
2. Client References: Offerors must provide at least three governmental client references in which work 



  
 

10 
 

completed is comparable to the requirements contained in this RFP. Submit a Client Reference to include 
name of entity where services were performed, name of contact person and valid phone number of the contact. 
Also include exit ratios, percentage of hearings and percentage of appeals to BOE. Offerors shall provide 
a complete list of ALL general reassessment services they have completed within the past five years. This 
information is to include the agreed upon contract price for each public body and the number of parcels that 
were appraised. 

3. Method and Plan: Offeror’s shall submit a method and plan outlining: 
a. How the requirements contained in this proposal will be met. This is the Offeror’s proposed plan. 
b. The Offeror’s proposed methodology for meeting the requirements of this RFP. 
c. Itemized list with prices of all services to be provided. 
d. Approximate date work will begin and end. 
e. The qualifications, experience, and background of the personnel to be used to complete the 

requirements of this contract. 
f. Discuss the possibility of the contractor hiring local clerical to carry over to the BOE be a condition of 

employment. 
4. Offeror’s Experience and Work Load: The County is requesting that Offerors include with the proposal 

a complete list of all contracts awarded during the past five years. The information must include the 
amount of the contract award and the actual amount paid elaborating on the reason for the difference. Sales 
ratio study information shall be provided for each job. The County is requesting this information to determine 
how complete Contractors are in providing pricing information for a proposal and how that pricing 
information relates to actual expenses paid. The County will not allow unwarranted contract modifications 
or purchase order changes for items that should have been addressed prior to awarding a contract. This 
information will be evaluated and could have an impact on the award decision. 

5. Pricing. Offerors are requested to provide pricing on a per parcel basis. Offerors must convey to the County 
how the county will be invoiced if the number of parcels appraised exceed the number originally quoted in the 
RFP. Offerors must also convey to the County how the County will be credited if the number of parcels 
appraised are less than the number originally quoted in the RFP. 

6. Other information that the Offeror believes pertinent for consideration. 
7. Exceptions to request for proposals: Any Offeror taking exception to any section of this Request for 

Proposal must clearly state the exception in writing. 
 

VI. EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT: 
 

A. Award of Contract: Selection shall be made of two or more Offerors deemed to be fully qualified and best suited 
among those submitting proposals on the basis of the evaluation factors included in the Request for Proposal, 
including price, if so stated in the Request for proposal. Negotiations shall be conducted with the offerors so 
selected. Price shall be considered, but need not be the sole determining factor. After negotiations have been 
conducted with each offeror so selected, Russell County shall select the offeror which, in its opinion, has made 
the best proposal, and shall award the contract to that offeror. Russell County may cancel the Request for Proposal 
or reject proposals at any time prior to an award, and is not required to furnish a statement of the reason why a 
particular proposal was not deemed to be the most advantageous. (Section 2.2-4359D, Code of Virginia.) Should 
Russell County determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one offeror is fully qualified, or that one 
offeror is clearly more highly qualified than the others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded 
to that offeror. The award document will be a contract incorporating by reference all the requirements, terms, and 
conditions of the solicitation and the contractor’s proposal as negotiated. See Attachment B for sample contract 
form. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

11 
 

B. Evaluation Criteria: Proposals shall be evaluated by the County using the following criteria: 

Each proposal will be evaluated on the following criteria: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII PRICE SCHEDULE: Offerors are requested to provide pricing per item listed in itemized pricing, including all 
tasks identified. 

 
The pricing schedule must include an itemized listing of all fees for each component of this project. 

 
VIII CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION: 

Lonzo Lester, County Administrator representing the Russell County, shall be identified as the Contract 
Administrator and shall use all powers under the contract to enforce its faithful performance.   The Contract 
Administrator, or his designee, shall determine the amount, quantity, acceptability, fitness of all aspects of the services 
and shall decide all other questions in connection with the services. The Contract Administrator, or his designee, 
shall not have the authority to approve changes in the services which alter the concept or which call for an extension 
of time for this contract. Any modifications made must be authorized by the County Administrator through a 
written amendment to the contract. 

 
IX PAYMENT PROCEDURES: 

 

1. Proposed method of payment: Offerors are requested to submit their recommendation as to how they are to be paid. 
2. Retainer:  a 10% retainer will be withheld from each invoice.  A final payment of the retainer will be made to 

the Contractor after final acceptance of all work. 
3. The County will authorize payment to the Contractor after receipt of Contractor’s correct invoice for services rendered. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 
Russell County Board of Supervisors  

Attn: Lonzo Lester 
137 Highland Drive 

Leb an o n ,  VA 24266 
 

3. Deliverables: All documents, reports, records, data or other materials, in whatever form, manual or mechanized, 
obtained or produced during the performance of this project shall be the sole property of the County and shall be 
delivered during an appropriate phase of or at the conclusion of the project, as set forth in these specifications or by 
the assessor. The documents, reports, records, data and other materials shall include, without limitation, the specific 
deliverable products listed below: 

1) A property inventory record for each parcel and account, 
2) Any sales ratio studies developed during the project, 
3) A detailed cost manual, 
4) The depreciation schedule and source of information used for its development, 
5) All materials and documentation used on the land valuation effort, 
6) Field review documents which reflect original proposed value, adjusted proposed value, and any notes 

relative to action taken from public disclosure activities, 
7) All manual and computerized reports which support values and valuation formulas, 
8) Documentation of all procedures used throughout the project. 

 
 

 
1. 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
Price 

WEIGHT 
15 

2. Proposed methodology for completing the reassessment 20 

3. Operating plan including staffing, timeframe, quality control, use of 
technology, oversight public relations in providing a solution to 
meet the County’s requirements 

 
 

25 

4. Relevant Experience 25 

5. References 15 

 



  
 

12 
 

X CONTRACT PERIOD: The term of this contract is for the anticipated time frame for reassessment services that 
will begin February 2024 and be completed by December 31, 2024. Russell County reserves the right to renew for 
an additional assessment period as negotiated. 



 

13 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. ADVERTISING: In the event a contract is awarded for supplies, equipment, or services resulting from this solicitation, no indication of such sales or 

services to Russell County will be used in product literature or advertising. The Contractor shall not state in any of the advertising or product literature 
that the Commonwealth of Virginia or any agency or institution of the Commonwealth has purchased or uses its products or services. 

2. AUDIT: The Contractor hereby agrees to retain all books, records, and other documents relative to this contract for five (5) years after final payment, 
or until audited by the Commonwealth of Virginia, whichever is sooner. Russell County, its authorized agents, and/or State auditors shall have full 
access to and the right to examine any of said materials during said period. 

3. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS: The successful Offeror shall deliver to the Russell County Administrator executed Commonwealth 
of Virginia Standard Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bonds, each in the sum of the contract amount, with Russell County as oblige. The 
surety shall be a surety company or companies approved by the State Corporation Commission to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
No payment shall be due and payable to the Contractor, even if the contract has been performed in whole or in part, until the bonds have been delivered to 
and approved by the Russell County Purchasing Department. Standard bond forms will be provided by the Russell County Administrator prior to or at the 
time of award. 

4. CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT: Russell County reserves the right to cancel and terminate any resulting contract, in part or in whole, without penalty, 
upon 60 days written notice to the Contractor. In the event the initial contract period is for more than 12 months, the resulting contract may be terminated 
by either party, without penalty, after the initial 12 months of the contract period upon 60 days written notice to the other party. Any contract cancellation 
notice shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to deliver and/or perform on all outstanding orders issued prior to the effective date of cancellation. 

5. IDENTIFICATION OF PROPOSAL ENVELOPE: The signed proposal should be returned in a separate envelope or package, sealed and addressed 
as follows: 
Russell County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
Reference the opening date and hour, and RFP Number in the lower left corner of the envelope or package. 
If a proposal not contained in the special envelope is mailed, the Offeror takes the risk that the envelope, even if marked as described above, may be 
inadvertently opened and the information compromised which may cause the proposal to be disqualified. No other correspondence or other proposals 
should be placed in the envelope. Proposals may be hand delivered to the Russell County Purchasing Department. 

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The contractor shall not be an employee of Russell County, but shall be an independent contractor. 
Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as authority for the contractor to make commitments which shall bind Russell County, or to otherwise act 
on behalf of Russell County, except as Russell County may expressly authorize in writing. 

7. INSURANCE: 
By signing and submitting a proposal under this solicitation, the Offeror certifies that if awarded the contract, it will have the following insurance coverages 
at the time the work commences. Additionally, it will maintain these during the entire term of the contract and that all insurance coverages will be provided 
by insurance companies authorized to sell insurance in Virginia by the Virginia State Corporation Commission. 
During the period of the contract, Russell County reserves the right to require the Contractor to furnish certificates of insurance for the coverage 
required. 
INSURANCE COVERAGES AND LIMITS REQUIRED: 
A. Worker's Compensation - Statutory requirements and benefits. 
B. Employers Liability - $100,000.00 
C. General Liability - $500,000.00 combined single limit. Russell County and the Commonwealth of Virginia shall be named as an additional insured 

with respect to goods/services being procured. This coverage is to include Premises/Operations Liability, Products and Completed Operations Coverage, 
Independent Contractor's Liability, Owner's and Contractor's Protective Liability and Personal Injury Liability. 

D. Automobile Liability - $500,000.00 
The contractor agrees to be responsible for, indemnify, defend and hold harmless Russell County, its officers, agents and employees from the payment 
of all sums of money by reason of any claim against them arising out of any and all occurrences resulting in bodily or mental injury or property damage 
that may happen to occur in connection with and during the performance of the contract, including but not limited to claims under the Worker's 
Compensation Act. The contractor agrees that it will, at all times, after the completion of the work, be responsible for, indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Russell County, its officers, agents and employees from all liabilities resulting from bodily or mental injury or property damage directly or 
indirectly arising out of the performance or nonperformance of the contract. 

8. MINORITY BUSINESS, WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESSES SUBCONTRACTING AND REPORTING: Where it is practicable for any portion of 
the awarded contract to be subcontracted to other suppliers, the contractor is encouraged to offer such business to minority and/or women-owned 
businesses. Names of firms may be available from the buyer and/or from the Division of Purchases and Supply. When such business has been 
subcontracted to these firms and upon completion of the contract, the contractor agrees to furnish the purchasing office the following information: name 
of firm, phone number, total dollar amount subcontracted and type of product/service provided. 

9. PRIME CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: The Contractor shall be responsible for completely supervising and directing the work under this 
contract and all subcontractors that he may utilize, using his best skill and attention. Subcontractors who perform work under this contract shall be 
responsible to the prime Contractor. The Contractor agrees that he is as fully responsible for the acts and omissions of his subcontractors and of persons 
employed by them as he is for the acts and omissions of his own employees. 

10. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS: Upon full payment to the Contractor, all concepts, ideas, plans specifications, management 
systems and approaches, records, reports, documents and other materials, including those in electronic form, (the “Documents”) prepared by the Contractor 
under the terms of this agreement shall become the exclusive property of the County, however the Contractor’s liability will be limited to the original 



 

14 
 

 
intended use of the Documents.  All materials shall be delivered to Russell County in usable condition after completion of the work, and prior to 
submission of the invoice for payment. 

11. SUBCONTRACTS: No portion of the work shall be subcontracted without prior written consent of Russell County. In the event that the Contractor desires 
to subcontract some part of the work specified herein, the Contractor shall furnish Russell County the names, qualifications and experience of their 
proposed subcontractors. The Contractor shall, however, remain fully liable and responsible for the work to be done by his subcontractor(s) and shall 
assure compliance with all requirements of the contract. 

12. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, GOODS AND NONPROFESSIONAL SERVICES: Delivery is required not later than December 31, 2 0 1 8 . It is 
understood and agreed by the Offeror that time is of the essence in the delivery of supplies, services, materials or equipment of the character and quality 
specified in the proposal document. In the event these specified supplies, services, materials or equipment are not delivered by the date specified there 
will be deducted, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages, the sum of $1000 per day for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the time specified; 
except that if the delivery be delayed by any act, negligence or default on the part of Russell County, public enemy, war, embargo, fire or explosion not 
caused by the negligence or intentional act of the Contractor or his supplier(s), or by riot, sabotage or labor trouble that results from a cause or causes 
entirely beyond the control or fault of the contractor or his supplier(s), a reasonable extension of time as Russell County deems appropriate may be granted. 
Upon receipt of a written request and justification for any extension from the Contractor, Russell County may extend the time for performance of 
the contract or delivery of goods herein specified, at Russell County's sole discretion, for good cause shown. 

  







Proposal For: Russell County VA
Project Name: Imagery with Change Finder and EV Cloud
Contract Term: 6 Years
Number of Projects: 3

Qty
100
415

33,000
1
1
1
1
1

21
1
1

Project #1 Total $109,084.70
Payment $109,084.70

Physical Ortho and Oblique Delivery
Capture History
Disaster Response Program
FutureView Advanced Training

Page 1 of 3

Change Detection- Includes Building Outlines and Connect Assessment Software
Eagleview Cloud Software (two years of access)
Integration Bundle
Early Access
Authorized Sub-divisions

Budget Proposal

Multi-Project Summary
3 Projects over 6 years

EagleView Rep: John Atkinson
Expiration Date: 3/31/2024
Target Capture: 2024-a-Winter

Product
Eagleview Cloud Imagery 4"
Eagleview Cloud Imagery 6"

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Qty
100
415

33,000
1
1
1
1
1

21
1
1

Project #2 Total $109,084.70
Payment $109,084.70

Qty
100
415

33,000
1
1
1
1
1

21
1
1

Project #3 Total $109,084.70
Payment $109,084.70

Capture History
Disaster Response Program
FutureView Advanced Training

Budget Proposal

Page 2 of 3

Eagleview Cloud Software (two years of access)
Integration Bundle
Early Access
Authorized Sub-divisions
Physical Ortho and Oblique Delivery

FutureView Advanced Training

Product
Eagleview Cloud Imagery 4"
Eagleview Cloud Imagery 6"
Change Detection- Includes Building Outlines and Connect Assessment Software

Early Access
Authorized Sub-divisions
Physical Ortho and Oblique Delivery
Capture History
Disaster Response Program

Eagleview Cloud Imagery 4"
Eagleview Cloud Imagery 6"
Change Detection- Includes Building Outlines and Connect Assessment Software
Eagleview Cloud Software (two years of access)
Integration Bundle

Product

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Page 3 of 3

Coverage Map

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

































 
 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1   

December 21, 2023 

Mr. Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

Russell County  

137 Highland Drive, Suite A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266-7169 

 

RE: Community Development Block Grant #21-21-14 

   Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Project 

Contract Amendment #1—Supplemental Funding 

 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

 

The Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) is amending the above referenced 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract to award an additional $1,000,000.00 in funds from 

the 2023 CDBG One-Time Supplemental Infrastructure Funds Program. The total CDBG award for this project 

is now $3,500,000.00. DHCD is also the extending the contract termination date from August 14, 2024, to August 

14, 2025. It is our expectation that this project will be fully completed by the new extension date.   

 

 If Russell County needs additional assistance, our team is ready to provide support. Please contact me 

to let us know how we can help you.     

 

Your signature below confirms your understanding that all terms, conditions, and assurances 

included in the original contract apply to this amendment. Please acknowledge your agreement with this 

amendment by signing this letter. Please return a scanned copy to Megan McKinnon, Program Support 

Specialist, by email at megan.mckinnon@dhcd.virginia.gov. The County will also need to upload a copy 

into “Reports and Documents” in the Centralized Application and Management System (CAMS) as a 

contract document. This will then become part of the Russell County Dante Sewer Project’s CDBG Contract 

documents. The effective date of this amendment is December 12, 2023. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Sandra Powell 

Sr. Deputy Director 

 

             

Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator   Date 

 

c: Debbie Milton, Cumberland Plateau PDC    Dr. Melissa Mason, DHCD 

Matt Boyd, Cumberland Plateau PDC    Stuart Burrill, DHCD 

 Kathi Boatright, DHCD      Tonya Thomas, DHCD  

 Tracy Puckett, Russell County PSA    Amanda Healy, DHCD 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Truck

VIN 

Last 

4 Miles

Sold 

Miles

Date 

Purchase Date Sold Est Sale Date

Months 

own

Miles 

per 

month

Total 

Miles

Purchase 

Price

Price 

Guartee

Return 

%

Auction 

Price

Auction 

Expense

Net Sold 

Price %

Cost To 

Own

True 

Monthly 

Cost To Own

Est Monthly 

Cost

Truck 

Number Comments

2017 Mack GU713 1370 859 85423 6/1/2016 9/18/2018 27 3132 84564 $152,849 $113,637 74% $137,000 $9,365 $127,635 84% $25,214 $933.85 RC1 SOLD

2017 Mack GU713 1377 1020 70303 6/1/2016 6/20/2018 24 2887 69283 $152,849 $113,637 74% $161,000 $11,495 $149,505 98% $3,344 $139.33 RC2 SOLD

2019 Mack GR64F 4789 732 70075 6/1/2018 3/6/2020 21 3302 69343 $154,220 $120,000 78% $153,500 $10,745 $142,755 93% $11,465 $545.95 RC3 SOLD

2019 Mack GR64F 4035 906 98983 8/22/2018 9/22/2020 25 3923 98077 $155,895 $110,000 71% $148,000 $10,620 $137,380 88% $18,515 $740.60 RC4 SOLD

2020 Mack GR64F 6846 600 80932 11/8/2019 9/21/2021 22 3651 80332 $160,395 $118,500 74% $190,000 $13,575 $176,425 110% -$16,030 -$728.64 RC5 SOLD

2020 Mack GR64F 9119 1345 62504 9/16/2020 3/15/2022 17 3598 61159 $156,326 $150,000 96% $250,000 $17,775 $232,225 149% -$75,899 -$4,464.65 RC6 SOLD

2022 Mack GR64F 6559 1228 112000 6/21/2021 3/19/2024 32 3462 110772 $160,582 0% $160,582 $2,676.37 RC7 March Auction

2022 Mack GR64F 6560 1222 103222 6/21/2021 9/20/2023 26 3923 97000 $160,582 $160,000 100% $205,000 $14,350 $190,650 119% -$30,068 -$1,156.46 RC8 SOLD

2022 Mack GR64F 6697 947 110793 2/7/2022 6/7/2024 28 $173,684 0% $173,684 $2,894.73 RC9 Based on Est 5 YR Life

2024 Mack GR64F 8735 1936 8/16/2023 9/16/2025 25 $212,711 0% $212,711 $3,545.19 RC10 Based on Est 5 YR Life

2024 Mack GR64F 8862 1/3/2024 12/26/2025 24 $215,212 0% $215,212 $3,586.87 RC11 Based on Est 5 YR Life

* Monthy Cost per truck Sold county is to the good $391.72 per month if keep 5 yrs not rotated cost is $3,342.26 per month

* Trucks are purchaced at Worldwide Equipment in Abingdon thru National Auto Fleet Group under sourcewell contract

* Trucks are sold at auction at JM Wood Auction in Montgomery, Alabama auction company gives price guarantee before auction

* Trucks are owned by county not leased

* Trucks warranty are Engine 24 month, Chassis 12 month, and Tranmission 36 month

* Trucks need to be sold at Auction around 75000 or less to get max return at Auction

* Trucks order typical time frame from order to build have been 12 to 18 month due to Mack limited build slots and body vendor lead time

* Rotation keeps trucks down time to minumim and maintance cost down 

Average Monthly Miles Truck Rotation 3,488

ROLLOFF TRUCK ROTATION

Average Monthly Cost Per Truck Sold Rotation -$391.72 Average Monthly Cost Per 5 YR* $3,342.26































1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
R December 14, 2023 

 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highlands Drive, Suite A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

RE: Local Law Enforcement ("LOLE") Grant Program - FFY 23 

 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 

 

The Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) makes federal funds available to 

localities to help support their efforts to reduce crime and improve public safety. The Virginia 

Department of Criminal Justice Services has been designated to administer a portion of the JAG 

funds reserved for Virginia and to make those funds available to local units of government. I am 

pleased to advise you that we are awarding your locality $2,512, funded through federal grant 

15PBJA-23-GG-03038-MUMU. Your DCJS grant award number will be determined once your 

eligibility application is submitted and approved. The project period for this program is 1/1/2024 

through 7/31/2024. 

 

To indicate your acceptance of the award and conditions: 

1. Sign the Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (“SOGA”) and return it electronically 

within the next 45 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov copying your Grant 

Monitor, Nicole Phelps at Nicole.Phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov. 

2. Localities wishing to accept the LOLE funds allocated for their jurisdiction will need 

to complete an “eligibility application” on DJCS’s On-line Grant Management 

System (“OGMS”) to ensure eligibility. The eligibility application process will be open 

until February 28, 2024. To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility 

application process through the DCJS On-line Grants Management System (“OGMS”) no 

later than 5:00 pm on February 28, 2024. Please note that although OGMS uses the 

words “application” throughout the system, this is not an application but an eligibility 

process. This is a six (6) month grant and there will be no continuation. 

3. Your agency will need to fill out all the requested information in the OGMS eligibility 

application to include the budget and brief budget narrative outlining how your agency 

will utilize the awarded federal funds (additional information on the LOLE grant program 

and how to complete the OGMS eligibility application is provided with this award 

package). 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



2 

 

 

Lonzo Lester 

December 14, 2023 

 

 

Included with this letter is your Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (SOGA), FY24 

Special Conditions, Reporting Requirements, and Projected Due Dates. Please review your 

Special Conditions carefully as they include specific requirements about how your grant funds 

must be managed. DCJS is mandated to comply with applicable requirements regarding the 

System for Award Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/SAM/. 

Therefore, you must maintain a valid Unique Entity ID (UEI) number (a 12-character 

alphanumeric ID assigned to an entity by SAM.gov used for identifying and keeping track of 

entities receiving federal funds) and be registered in SAM.gov to receive an award.  

 

If you have not previously done so, you must register in our new On-line Grants 

Management System (OGMS) at https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/ in order to manage this grant 

online. The instructions on Registering for a New Account are posted here 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along with other resources and 

training videos. All registrants will be approved within 3 – 5 business days. 

 

We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. If you 

have any questions regarding this award, please contact your Grant Monitor, Nicole Phelps, at 

(804) 263-3388 or via email at Nicole.Phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       

Jackson Miller 

 

 

Enclosures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
William Watson 

Sheriff 

79 Rogers Avenue 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8033 

sheriff@russellcountyva.us 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highlands Drive, Suite A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8000 

lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Alicia McGlothlin 

Treasurer 

137 Highlands Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8028 

rctreas@bvu.net 

 

*If not indicated above, please provide your locality’s Unique Entity Identifier (UEI #) in the 

space provided. This number replaces your DUNS number. As the duly authorized 

representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 

Special Conditions attached thereto, hereby accepts this grant and agrees to the conditions and 

provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award. 

 

Signature: ______________________________  Title: ________________________ 
  Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 
 

 

Date:   ______________________________ UEI #: _______________________ 

Local Law Enforcement ("LOLE") Grant Program - FFY 23 

Subgrantee:    Russell  

DCJS Grant Number: TBD UEI #: WMRHA68SMK19 

Grant Start Date: 1/1/2024 Grant End Date: 7/31/2024 

Federal Grant Number:   15PBJA-23-GG-03038-MUMU 

Federal Awardee:  BJA 

Federal Catalog Number:  16.738 

Project Description:   To strengthen Crime Control 

Federal Start Date:  10/1/2022 

Federal Funds:   $2,512  

State General Funds:     

State Special Funds:   

Local Match:   _______ 

 

Total Budget:   $2,512   Indirect Cost Rate: _____%  *If applicable 

 



Commonwealth of Virginia 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

 Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) Instructions 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street  Richmond, VA 23219  
www.dcjs.virginia.gov  Rev. 9/2023 

 

 
The Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) is included within the DCJS Award Package. It 
includes the federal and/or state grant information, the three contact persons of record (Project 
Director, Project Administrator, and Finance Officer), and the approved budget.  
 
If any of the three persons of record listed on your SOGA are incorrect, line through the 
information DCJS has provided and write in the correct person and their contact information.  
 
Please have this document signed by the Project Administrator or the approved designee. 
 
For more assistance, please contact grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. 
 
 Project Director, Project Administrator, and Finance Officer 

o Project Director – The person who will have day-to-day responsibility for 
managing the project.  

o Project Administrator – The person who has authority to formally commit the 
organization, locality, or state agency to complying with all the terms of the grant 
application, including the provision of the required match. This must be the 
president of the Board of Directors of a nonprofit organization; the county 
administrator; the city, county or town manager; the chief elected officer of the 
locality, such as the Mayor or Chairman of the Board of Supervisors; or, in the 
case of a state agency, the agency head.  
 Please Note: If someone other than one of these officials has been 

delegated the authority to sign, and provides their signature on the 
grant application, your organization must: (1) provide a letter, 
memorandum, or other document by which the signing authority was 
delegated on an official organization letterhead, (2) provide an 
effective date, (3) list of applicable grant numbers, and (4) the contact 
information of the person being granted signatory authority.  

 The received letter, memorandum, or other document shall run 
through the project period as defined in the grant award terms and 
conditions. 

 A new letter is required for any newly issued DCJS grant and/or 
change in delegation of authority. 

o Finance Officer – The person who will be responsible for fiscal management of 
funds. 

 

 



Commonwealth of Virginia 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

 Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) Instructions 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street  Richmond, VA 23219  
www.dcjs.virginia.gov  Rev. 9/2023 

 

Sample Delegation of Authority Letter  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Commonwealth of Virginia 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

 Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) Instructions 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street  Richmond, VA 23219  
www.dcjs.virginia.gov  Rev. 9/2023 

 

Sample Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) 
 

 



 
 

Virginia Local Law Enforcement (“LOLE”) Grant Program Federal FFY 2023 
 

Introduction 

 

The Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services (“DCJS”) is pleased to announce the 

availability of funds through the Local Law Enforcement (“LOLE”) Grant Program.  These 

funds are available under the federal Fiscal Year 2023 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 

Assistance Grant (“JAG”) Program.  This program makes federal funds available to localities to 

help support their efforts to support public safety or crime prevention efforts. DCJS has been 

designated to administer a portion of the JAG funds reserved for Virginia and to make those 

funds available to local units of government. DCJS has designated this program the Local Law 

Enforcement, LOLE, Grant Program. Grant funds can be used for state and local initiatives, 

technical assistance, training, personnel, equipment, supplies, contractual support and 

information systems for criminal justice, including for any one or more of the following areas: 

law enforcement programs; prosecution and court programs; prevention and education programs; 

corrections and community corrections programs; drug treatment and enforcement programs; and 

planning, evaluation and technology improvement programs. 

 

Eligibility for LOLE Funds 

 

The LOLE grant program is a formula-based grant opportunity.  Eligible localities have reported 

violent crime data at least three (3) years of the past ten (10) calendar years, to the Federal 

Bureau of Investigations Uniform Crime Report (UCR) Part 1.  If a locality has not reported at 

least three (3) years of UCR Part 1 violent crime data in the past ten calendar years, they are 

ineligible to receive an award.  Localities wishing to accept the LOLE funds allocated for their 

jurisdiction will need to complete an “eligibility application” on DJCS’s Online Grant 

Management System (“OGMS”) to ensure eligibility.   

 

Funding Focused Areas 

 

o Law Enforcement to include- hiring, overtime, and equipment 

o Prosecution and Courts 

o Prevention and Education efforts 

o Corrections and Community Corrections 

o Drug Treatment 

o Planning, Education and Technology Improvement 

  

Prohibition on Use of Funds 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



 

Funds through this grant program are not to be used to purchase, lease, rent or acquire tanks or 

armored vehicles, aircraft including unmanned aerial systems and unmanned aircrafts (including 

drones), limousines, real estate, yachts, consultants, or any vehicle not used primarily for law 

enforcement.  In addition, federal funds cannot be used to supplant State or local funds, but 

instead to increase the amount of funds that would be available otherwise from State and local 

sources. Grant funds may not be used for: weapons, ammunition, and related equipment 

normally and routinely provided by the locality; standard clothing and uniforms normally and 

routinely provided by the locality (including ballistic vests); construction or renovation; land 

acquisition, lobbying and political contributions; honoraria; bonuses; giveaways or SWAG; 

personal entertainment such as tickets to sporting events; personal calls; alcohol; or vehicles 

normally and routinely provided by the locality to others in the same roles. Grant funds cannot 

be used for refreshment breaks or meals at training events, meetings or conferences. *Also please 

view the Unallowable Costs under JAG document that is attached in the funding opportunity in 

OGMS as an additional reference* 

 

Match Requirement 

 

There is no match requirement for this program. 

 

Funding Period 

 

The eligibility/ application process will be open until February 28, 2024. This should give 

localities ample time to assess their needs for funding.  This grant is a six (6) month grant 

program with the grant period being January 1, 2024 – July 31, 2024. There will be no 

continuation of the grant for this program. 

  

Grant Funds 

 

• This is a reimbursement grant program. 

• Grant funds cannot be used to supplant state or local funds that would otherwise be 

available for the same purposes. 

• Reimbursement will be based on paid invoices for approved expenditures or 

through requested advance drawdowns with expected expenditures. 

• Changes to the grant budget after award must be approved by DCJS prior to expending 

funds based on the changes. 

• Transactions occurring outside of the grant period will not be eligible for 

reimbursement. 

• Any purchases made prior to the grant award package being issued but was within the 

grant period will still require approval by the grant monitor and should be deemed an 

allowable expense before disbursement of grant funds. 

 

Forms and Instructions 

 

To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility process through the DCJS On-line 

Grants Management System (OGMS) no later than 5:00 p.m. on February 28, 2024. Please 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



note that although OGMS uses the words “application” throughout the system, this is not an 

application but an eligibility process. 

 

To complete the process, you must register in OGMS and, once approved, choose “Local Law 

Enforcement, (“LOLE”) Grant Program- FFY 23 from the list on the left panel under 

Funding Opportunities. 

  

General Information: You will need to select “Create a New Application”.  The OGMS 

Application Creation Wizard will assist you in completing the application’s General Information 

form. Step 1 of the Wizard requires an application title and primary contact.  

 

The application title should include the locality’s name and fiscal year of the grant program (e.g. 

ABC Police Department LOLE FFY23). 

 

The primary contact is the individual in your agency who will be designated as the primary 

person responsible for the eligibility process from your locality. The individual will receive 

automated email notifications when attention is needed on the forms. You will be able to add 

other persons to give them access to edit the forms or associate them later after the fiscal year has 

begun. 

 

Once the information has been entered, click “Save Form” to enter Step 2. Under this step, an 

Application ID will be assigned and the Program Area, Funding Opportunity, Application Stage, 

and Application Status will be auto populated. Select the locality for who you will be submitting 

these forms. Click “Save Form Information” to start Step 3. 

 

Under “Additional Applicants,” select any additional contacts within the locality that will also 

manage funding and work on the forms. This may include the Police Chief and Finance Officer. 

Once you click “Save Form Information” on Step 3, you will have completed the General 

Information component of the eligibility process. 

 

After General Information has been finished, you have the ability to complete the forms in any 

order or save to return at another time. 

  

Face Sheet: (everything in RED on the application form is required) 

 

o Congressional District: Select the Congressional District(s) that will benefit from the 

funding. To select more than one, hold down the Ctrl key. 

o Jurisdiction(s) Served: Select all jurisdiction(s) served. 

o Certified Crime Prevention Community: Click the hyperlink on the form to see if your 

locality is certified. Answer “Yes” or “No” 

o Type of Application: For this funding opportunity, you will choose “New.” 

o Community Setting: Check the box(s) that best describes the locality. 

o Brief Project Overview: Provide a short description of what the funds will be used for, for 

example, SWAT vests, Body Worn Camera mounts, etc. 

o Project Director: List the person who will have the day-to-day responsibility for managing 

the project, and provide all required contact information. 



o Project Administrator: Name and contact information for the County Administrator or City 

Manager (Administrative and Fiscal Agent) who has the authority to formally commit the 

organization/locality to complying with all the terms of the grant application, including the 

provision of the required match, if applicable.  

o Finance Officer: List the person who will be responsible for the fiscal management of the 

funds and provide all required contact information. 

 

LOLE Budget: Click “Edit Grid” and enter the amount allocated to the locality under the 

Budget Category your locality plans to use the funds, for example, you would choose Law 

Enforcement, Prosecution/ Courts, Prevention/Education and so on. Your localities award 

amount would be located in the award letter that went out to your locality. 

 

• Depending on which Budget Category your locality chooses to have LOLE funds 

support, you will then need to fill out the required information for each category.  

• For Example, if your locality is going to use LOLE funds for Law Enforcement, 

you will need to fill out the Law Enforcement Category, you should answer, 

“Yes” when asked, “Are Law Enforcement funds being requested?”. Law 

Enforcement funds can be used for Hiring, Overtime, or Equipment.  You will 

need to complete the appropriate area that the funding will be utilized. It is 

required that a brief narrative is completed for any section that you are utilizing 

funds. 

• Each budget category has their own form that will need to be completed if you are 

requested funds from that category.  If you are not requesting funds from a certain 

category, you can select “No” when asked if funds are being selected in a 

particular category.  

 

General Conditions and Assurances: This section is required under this grant program and 

must be completed by the Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual 

who has been delegated or designated as the signing authority, must certify that the grant funds 

gives assurances and certifies that the grant will follow federal conditions. 

 

Lobbying Disbarment: This section is required under this grant program and must be 

completed by the Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual who has 

been delegated or designated as the signing authority, must certify that the grantee will be in 

compliance with the certification requirements under 28 CFR Part 69, “New Restrictions on 

Lobbying” and 28 CFR Part 67, “Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-

procurement) and Government-wide Requirements for Drug-free Workplace”.  

 

Non-Supplantation: This section is required under this grant program and must be completed 

by the Project Administrator. The Project Administrator, or the individual who has been 

delegated or designated as the signing authority, must certify that the grant funds requested under 

this grant program will be used to supplement existing funds and will not replace (supplant) 

funds appropriated for the same purposes. 

 

Authority Certification: This section is required under this grant program and must be 

completed by the Project Administrator. If the person completing the application is not the 



Project Administrator, as previously defined, information regarding the signing authority, or the 

delegation of such authority, should be uploaded in the Attachments section of the application.  

 

Attachments: There are not required attachments for the LOLE grant program. Select “No”, 

attachments are not required. You will need to upload an attachment if the person completing the 

application is not the Project Administrator. Information regarding the signing authority, or the 

delegation of such authority, should be uploaded as an attachment if the Project Administrator 

signature is not in the required 4 forms previously listed and are delegating signing authority to 

another person. 

 

Submitting Forms 

 

To receive funds, localities must complete the eligibility/application process through the 

DCJS On-line Grants Management System (OGMS) no later than 5:00 p.m. February 28, 

2024. Each form must be marked as complete before you can submit. If you receive an alert, you 

will need to review the form for any missing required information. 

  

Technical Assistance 

 

Please contact the following DCJS staff for questions regarding your Local Law Enforcement, 

“LOLE”, Grant program: 

 

o Nicole Phelps: email nicole.phelps@dcjs.virginia.gov or telephone 804.786.1577 

o Tracy Matthews: email tracy.matthews@dcjs.virginia.gov or telephone 804.371.0635   

o Natasha Winfree: email natashawinfree@dcjs.virginia.gov or telephone 804.659.7593 

  

For assistance with the OGMS system, email ogmssupport@dcjs.virginia.gov and include the 

program area in the subject line. This should be used for general system questions and not form-

specific inquiries. 

   

For additional resources, refer to the Website Links under the Funding Opportunity. 



1 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

GRANT SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

 
Acceptance of this grant award by the subgrantee constitutes its agreement that it assumes full 
responsibility for the management of all aspects of the grant and the activities funded by the 
grant, including assuring proper fiscal management of and accounting for grant funds; assuring 
that personnel paid with grant funds are hired, supervised and evaluated in accordance with 
established employment and personnel policies; and assuring that all terms, conditions and 
assurances--those submitted with the grant application, and those issued with this award--are 
complied with. 
 
By signing the Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance, the subgrantee agrees to:  

• use the grant funds to carry out the activities described in the grant application, as 
modified by the terms and conditions attached to this award or by subsequent 
amendments approved by DCJS;  

• adhere to the approved budget contained in this award and amendments made to it in 
accord with these terms and conditions; and, 

• comply with all terms, conditions and assurances either attached to this award or 
submitted with the grant application. 

 
1. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal 

funds (FY2023)   
 

The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of 
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including from 
various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022, are set out at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY22AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated 
by reference here. 

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subgrantee would or 
might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the subgrantee is to contact 
DCJS for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of DCJS and 
OJP. 

  

2024 Local Law Enforcement Grant  

FFY23 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program  

Funding Opportunity: 522456 

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY22AppropriationsRestrictions.htm


2 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements 
 

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 
C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the 
"Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award. 

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP 
awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at: 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm. 

3. Record retention and access 
 

Records pertinent to the award that the subgrantee at any tier must retain -- typically for a period 
of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report, unless a different retention 
period applies -- and to which the subgrantee at any tier must provide access, include 
performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records, supporting 
documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333. 

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or 
distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of 
the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the subgrantee is to contact DCJS promptly for clarification. 

4. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information 
(PII) 

 

The subgrantee at any tier, must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an 
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it -- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, 
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable information (PII)" (2 
CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates 
a "Federal information system" (OMB Circular A-130).  The subgrantee's breach procedures 
must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of PII to DCJS no later than 24 
hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach. 

5. OJP Training Guiding Principles 
 
Any training or training materials that the subgrantee at any tier-- develops or delivers with OJP 
award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, 
available at https://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm. 

 
  

https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm
https://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm


3 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

6. Effect of failure to address audit issues 
 

The subgrantee understands and agrees that DCJS or the DOJ awarding agency may withhold 
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by DCJS or the DOJ 
awarding agency) the subgrantee does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues 
from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or 
other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ 
awards. 

7. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false 
statements 

 

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award.  Compliance with any 
certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the subgrantee that relate to 
conduct during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award. 

Limited Exceptions: In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice 
("DOJ") may determine that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more 
requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions regarding 
enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are 
(or will be during the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice 
Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices: Special circumstances as to particular 
award conditions" (www.ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and 
incorporated by reference into the award. 

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the subgrantee, the authorized subgrantee 
official accepts all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if 
personally executed by the authorized subgrantee official, all assurances or certifications 
submitted by or on behalf of the subgrantee that relate to conduct during the period of 
performance. 

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a 
condition set out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or a 
certification or assurance related to conduct during the award period -- may result in the 
Office of Justice Programs (OJP) or the Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) 
taking appropriate action with respect to the subgrantee and the award.  Among other 
things, the OJP and DCJS may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or 
terminate the award. The Department of Justice ("DOJ"), including OJP, also may take 
other legal action as appropriate. 

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related 
to this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of 
criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 
10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative 

http://www.ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm


4 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-
3812). 

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
by its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it 
the maximum effect permitted by law.  Should it be held, instead, that the provision is 
utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this 
award. 

8. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 
C.F.R. Part 38 

 

The subgrantee at any tier must comply with all applicable requirements of 28C.F.R. Part 38, 
specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program 
beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries. 

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of 
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious 
belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules 
and requirements that pertain to subgrantee organizations that engage in or conduct 
explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to subgrantees 
that are faith-based or religious organizations. 
 

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other 
Neighborhood Organizations," is currently available via the Electronic Code of Federal 
Regulations at:  https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-38 , by browsing to 
Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data. 

9. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 
C.F.R. Part 42 

 

The subgrantee at any tier must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, 
specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to 
an equal employment opportunity program. 

10. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 
C.F.R. Part 54 

 

The subgrantee at any tier must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, 
which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs." 

  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-38


5 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

11. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to 
employees) 

 

The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41 
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, 
discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information 
related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of 
authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or 
a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant. 

The subgrantee also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native 
language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712. 

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to 
this award, the subgrantee is to contact DCJS for guidance. 

12. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of 
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events 

 

The subgrantee at any tier must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, 
and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval, and reporting 
requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related 
to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or 
beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. 

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award 
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward 
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide"). 

13. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award  
 

The subgrantee must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and 
effectiveness of work under this award. The data must be provided to DCJS as specified by 
DCJS in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection 
supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the 
GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws. 

  



6 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

14. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate 
 

A subgrantee that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable 
law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that 
elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise DCJS in writing of both its 
eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 
Uniform Requirements.  The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct 
costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. 

15. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors 
 

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the 
award (as approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ 
funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute -- that a purpose of 
some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the subgrantee at 
any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.  

The subgrantee at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain 
individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of 
an individual's employment status.  

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at: 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of 
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating 
minors), and are incorporated by reference here. 

16. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide 
 

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted 
on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at 
https://www.ojp.gov/funding/financialguidedoj/overview ) including any updated version that 
may be posted during the period of performance.  The subgrantee at any tier agrees to comply 
with the DOJ Grants Financial Guide. 

17. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving 
 

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While 
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages subgrantees to adopt and 
enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the 
course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish workplace safety policies and 
conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted 
drivers. 

  

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
https://www.ojp.gov/funding/financialguidedoj/overview


7 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

18. Potential imposition of additional requirements 

The subgrantee agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the 
DOJ and DCJS during the period of performance for this award if the subgrantee is designated as 
"high-risk”. 

The subgrantee understands that it may be subject to additional financial and programmatic on-site 
monitoring, which may be on short notice, and agrees that it will cooperate with any such 
monitoring. 

19. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award  

1. The subgrantee at any tier must-- 

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United 
States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the 
subgrantee properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is 
being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).  

B. Notify all persons associated with the subgrantee who are or will be involved in 
activities under this award of both— 

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and  

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2) that, generally 
speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for 
employment) certain aliens. 

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this 
condition to be notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility 
verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).  

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 
Uniform Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility 
verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with 
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent 
notifications and trainings. 

2. Monitoring  

The subgrantee's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring at any tier and compliance 
with this condition.  

3. Allowable costs 

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award 
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of 
actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition. 

4. Rules of construction  



8 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

A. Staff involved in the hiring process  

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities 
under this award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all subgrantees 
officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect 
to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.  

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify  

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification 
of employment eligibility, the subgrantee at any tier may choose to participate in, 
and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized 
to act on behalf of the subgrantee uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify 
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final 
Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position 
in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.  

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, 
Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the 
Northern Mariana Islands.  

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any 
subgrantee at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, 
including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law. 

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to 
relieve any subgrantee at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation 
otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2).  

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-
Verify visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email EVerify at: 

E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.  

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to DCJS and 
OJP, before award acceptance. 

  

mailto:E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov


9 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

20. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters 

No subgrantee under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or 
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to 
sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, 
or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or 
abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or 
agency authorized to receive such information. 

The foregoing is not intended and shall not be understood by the agency making this 
award, to contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to 
classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented 
information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the 
nondisclosure of classified information. 

1.  In accepting this award, the subgrantee-- 

a.  represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality 
agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or 
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or 
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and 

b.  certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its 
employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or 
otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or 
abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award 
funds, will provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making this 
award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly 
authorized to do so by that agency. 

2.  If the subgrantee does or is authorized under this award to make subawards 
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both— 

a. it represents that--(1)  it has determined that no other entity that the 
subgrantee's application proposes may or will receive award funds (whether 
through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a 
procurement contract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality 
agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or 
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or 
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and (2)  it 
has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to 
support this representation; and 
 

b.  it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subgrantee, contractor, or 
subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its 
employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise 



10 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described 
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, 
will provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will 
resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so 
by that agency. 

21. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States 
Code 

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the 
U.S. Code were editorially reclassified to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and 
Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions 
pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including 
many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code. 

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory 
provision that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a 
reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction 
specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in material 
incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award 
requirements. 

 22. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization 

The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for 
authorization of any subaward.  This condition applies to agreements that -- for 
purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a 
"subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement "contract"). 

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the 
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award 
condition:  All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), 
and are incorporated by reference here. 

  

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm


11 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

23. Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier 
Requirements 

The subgrantee must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for 
Award Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes 
applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the 
currency of information in SAM.  

Subgrantees must be registered in SAM to receive an award and must maintain an active 
registration for the entire period of the award. 

The details of the subgrantee’s obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are 
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: 
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements) and are 
incorporated by reference here. 

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural 
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or 
operate in his or her name). 

24. Restrictions on "lobbying" 

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by 
the subgrantee at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the 
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any 
level of government.  See 18 U.S.C. 1913.  (There may be exceptions if an applicable 
federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by 
law.) 

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by 
the subgrantee, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a 
Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect 
to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, 
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying 
any such award.  See 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an 
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations. 

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subgrantee 
would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subgrantee is to contact DCJS 
for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of DCJS and 
OJP. 

  

  

https://www.sam.gov/
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm


12 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

25. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any 
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000   

The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain 
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract 
that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000).  This 
condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative 
requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider a 
subaward). 

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a 
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition:  Specific 
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if 
contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here. 

 26. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons 
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award) 

The subgrantee at any tier must comply with all applicable requirements (including 
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking 
of persons, whether on the part of subgrantees, or individuals defined (for purposes of this 
condition) as "employees" of any subgrantee. 

The details of the subgrantee's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to 
trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition:  
Prohibited conduct by subgrantees related to trafficking in persons (including reporting 
requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference 
here. 

27. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding 

If the subgrantee currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the subgrantee 
receives any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, 
the subgrantee promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal 
awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the 
identical cost items for which funds are provided under this award.  If so, the subgrantee 
must promptly notify DCJS in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so, requested by 
DCJS, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope to eliminate any 
inappropriate duplication of funding. 

  

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm


13 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

28. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct 

The subgrantee at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector General 
(OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subgrantee, contractor, 
subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award -- (1) 
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil 
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar 
misconduct. 

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award 
should be reported to the OIG by--  
 
(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-
grants.htm 

(select "Submit Report Online"); 

(2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, 

Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, 
DC 20530; and/or 

(3) by facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at 
(202) 616-9881 (fax). 
Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline. 

29. Use of program income (Project Income) 
 

Program income (as defined in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements) must be used in 
accordance with the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. Program income 
earnings and expenditures both must be reported on the quarterly to DCJS. Any funds 
generated as a direct result of DCJS grant-funded projects are deemed project 
income.  Examples of project income might include service fees; client fees; usage or 
rental fees; sales of materials; and income received from sale of seized and forfeited 
assets (cash, personal or real property included). 

  

https://oig.justice.gov/hotline


14 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

30. Justice Information Sharing 
 
In order to promote information sharing and enable interoperability among disparate systems 
across the justice and public safety community, the subgrantee at any tier, must comply with 
DOJ's Global Justice Information Sharing Initiative (DOJ's Global) guidelines and 
recommendations for this particular award. The subgrantee shall conform to the Global 
Standards Package (GSP) and all constituent elements, where applicable, as described at: 
https://it.ojp.gov/gsp_grantcondition. The subgrantee shall document planned approaches to 
information sharing and describe compliance to the GSP and appropriate privacy policy that 
protects shared information or provide detailed justification for why an alternative approach is 
recommended. 
 
To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives funded by BJA for law 
enforcement information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between 
jurisdictions, such systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the 
communication backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless the subgrantee can 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of BJA that this requirement would not be cost effective or would 
impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system. 
 
31. Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23 in Information technology systems 
 
With respect to any information technology system funded or supported by funds under this 
award, the subgrantee at any tier, must comply with 28 C.F.R. Part 23, Criminal Intelligence 
Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be applicable. Should OJP 
determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its discretion, perform audits of the 
system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28 C.F.R. Part 23 occur, the subgrantee 
may be fined as per 42 U.S.C. 3789g(c)-(d). Subgrantee may not satisfy such a fine with federal 
funds. 
 
32. Protection of human research subjects 
 
The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP 
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including 
obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent. 
 
33. Confidentiality of data 
 
The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 
section 10231 and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data 
or information. Subgrantee further agrees, as a condition of grant approval, to submit a Privacy 
Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, section 
22.23. 
 
The subgrantee agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or 
information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any 
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project. 



15 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

 
34. Required online (internet-based) Law Enforcement Task-Force Training 
 
Within 120 days of award acceptance, each current member of a law enforcement task force 
funded with award funds who is a task force commander, agency executive, task force officer, or 
other task force member of equivalent rank, will complete required online (internet-based) task 
force training.  Additionally, all future task force members are required to complete this training 
once during the life of this award, or once every four years if multiple awards include this 
requirement.   
 
The training is provided free of charge online through BJA's Center for Task Force Integrity and 
Leadership (www.ctfli.org).  This training addresses task force effectiveness as well as other key 
issues including privacy and civil liberties/rights, task force performance measurement, 
personnel selection, and task force oversight and accountability. When BJA funding supports a 
task force, a task force personnel roster should be compiled and maintained, along with course 
completion certificates, by the subgrantee.  
 
Additional information is available regarding this required training and access methods via BJA's 
web site and the Center for Task Force Integrity and Leadership (www.ctfli.org). 
 
35. Justification Consultant rate  
 
Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per 
day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the Office of Justice 
Programs (OJP) program office prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds. 
 
36. Authorized Representative Declaration 
 
The subgrantee understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares 
and certifies, among other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept 
the award on behalf of the subgrantee entity and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material 
requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of performance under this award. The 
subgrantee further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role of 
Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first 
ensuring that the individual has the requisite legal authority. 
 
  



16 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

37. National Environmental Policy Act Compliance 
 
Upon request, the subgrantee at any tier, must assist the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) in 
complying with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the National Historic 
Preservation Act, and other related federal environmental impact analyses requirements in the 
use of these grant funds, either directly by the subgrantee. Accordingly, the subgrantee agrees to 
first determine if any of the following activities will be funded by the grant, prior to obligating 
funds for any of these purposes. If it is determined that any of the following activities will be 
funded by the award, the subgrantee agrees to contact BJA.  
 
The subgrantee understands that this special condition applies to its following new activities 
whether or not they are being specifically funded with these grant funds. That is, as long as the 
activity is being conducted by the subgrantee, or any third party and the activity needs to be 
undertaken in order to use these grant funds, this special condition must first be met. The 
activities covered by this special condition are: 
  
a. New construction; 
 
b. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically 
sensitive area, including properties located within a 100-year flood plain, a wetland, or habitat 
for endangered species, or a property listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places;  
 
c. A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a) result in a 
change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size;  
 
d. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that are 
(a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b) traditionally used, for 
example, in office, household, recreational, or education environments; and  
 
e. Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory operations, 
including the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories.  
 
The subgrantee understands and agrees that complying with NEPA may require the preparation 
of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as directed by BJA. 
The subgrantee further understands and agrees to the requirements for implementation of a 
Mitigation Plan, as detailed at http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html, for programs 
relating to methamphetamine laboratory operations.  
 
Application of this Special Condition to Subgrantee's Existing Programs or Activities: for any of 
the subgrantee’s existing programs or activities that will be funded by these grant funds, the 
subgrantee, upon specific request from BJA, agrees to cooperate with BJA in any preparation by 
BJA of a national or program environmental assessment of that funded program or activity. 
Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant monitor at DCJS. 
 
  

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html


17 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

38. Establishment of trust fund 
 
If award funds are being drawn down in advance, the subgrantee is required to establish a trust 
fund account. Subgrantees must maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest-bearing 
accounts, unless regulatory exclusions apply (2 C.F.R. 200.305(b)(8)). The trust fund, including 
any interest, may not be used to pay debts or expenses incurred by other activities beyond the 
scope of the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG). The subgrantee 
also agrees to obligate the award funds (including any interest earned) during the period of 
performance for the award and expend within 45 days thereafter. Any unobligated or 
unexpended funds, including interest earned, must be returned to DCJS at the time of closeout. 
 
39. Required data on law enforcement agency training 
 
Any law enforcement agency receiving direct or sub-awarded JAG funding must submit 
quarterly accountability metrics data related to training that officers have received on the use of 
force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive engagement with the 
public. 
 
40. Expenditures prohibited without waiver 
 
No funds under this award may be expended on the purchase of items prohibited by the JAG 
program statute, unless, as set forth at 34 U.S.C. 10152, the BJA Director certifies that 
extraordinary and exigent circumstances exist, making such expenditures essential to the 
maintenance of public safety and good order. 
 
41. Use of funds for DNA testing 
 
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA 
profiles must be uploaded to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database 
operated by the FBI) by a government DNA laboratory with access to CODIS.  
 
No profiles generated under this award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental 
DNA database without prior express written approval from BJA.  
 
Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the 
resulting DNA profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work 
with their state CODIS agency to ensure all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA 
(see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures Manual). 
 
Subgrantees utilizing award funds for forensic genealogy testing must adhere to the United 
States Department of Justice Interim Policy Forensic Genealogical DNA Analysis and Searching 
and must collect and report the metrics identified in Section IX of that document to BJA. 
 
  



18 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

42. Submission of eligible records relevant to the National Instant Background Check 
System 
 
Consonant with federal statutes that pertain to firearms and background checks -- including 18 
U.S.C. 922 and 34 U.S.C. ch. 409 -- if the subgrantee at any tier uses this award to fund (in 
whole or in part) a specific project or program (such as a law enforcement, prosecution, or court 
program) that results in any court dispositions, information, or other records that are "eligible 
records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the National Instant 
Background Check System (NICS), or that has as one of its purposes the establishment or 
improvement of records systems that contain any court dispositions, information, or other 
records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS, the 
subgrantee must ensure that all such court dispositions, information, or other records that are 
"eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS 
are promptly made available to the NICS or to the "State" repository/database that is 
electronically available to (and accessed by) the NICS, and -- when appropriate -- promptly must 
update, correct, modify, or remove such NICS relevant "eligible records". 
 
In the event of minor and transitory non-compliance, the subgrantee may submit evidence to 
demonstrate diligent monitoring of compliance with this condition. DOJ will give great weight to 
any such evidence in any express written determination regarding this condition. 
 
43. Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) Program 
 
JAG funds may not be used as the 50% match for purposes of the Bulletproof Vest Partnership 
(BVP) program. 
 
  



19 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

44. Certification of body armor "mandatory wear" policies, and compliance with NIJ 
standards 
 
If subgrantee uses funds under this award to purchase body armor, the subgrantee must submit a 
signed certification that each law enforcement agency receiving body armor purchased with 
funds from this award has a written "mandatory wear" policy in effect. The subgrantee must keep 
signed certifications on file for any planning to utilize funds from this award for ballistic-
resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchases. This policy must be in place for at least all 
uniformed officers before any funds from this award may be used by an agency for body armor. 
There are no requirements regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear 
policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.  
 
Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased 
at any threat level, make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body 
armor has been tested and found to comply with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic 
or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor Model List. In addition, 
ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States and 
must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard 
information and the NIJ Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links 
located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/topics/equipment-and technology/body-
armor. 
 
45. Extreme risk protection programs 
 
Extreme risk protection programs funded by JAG must include, at a minimum: pre-deprivation 
and post-deprivation due process rights that prevent any violation or infringement of the 
Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of Rights, and the 
substantive or procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and Fourteenth 
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and as interpreted 
by State courts and United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the United States). 
Such programs must include, at the appropriate phase to prevent any violation of constitutional 
rights, at minimum, notice, the right to an in-person hearing, an unbiased adjudicator, the right to 
know opposing evidence, the right to present evidence, and the right to confront adverse 
witnesses; the right to be represented by counsel at no expense to the government; pre-
deprivation and post-deprivation heightened evidentiary standards and proof which mean not less 
than the protections afforded to a similarly situated litigant in Federal court or promulgated by 
the State's evidentiary body, and sufficient to ensure the full protections of the Constitution of 
the United States, including but not limited to the Bill of Rights, and the substantive and 
procedural due process rights guaranteed under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the 
Constitution of the United States, as applied to the States, and as interpreted by State courts and 
United States courts (including the Supreme Court of the United States). The heightened 
evidentiary standards and proof under such programs must, at all appropriate phases to prevent 
any violation of any constitutional right, at minimum, prevent reliance upon evidence that is 
unsworn or unaffirmed, irrelevant, based on inadmissible hearsay, unreliable, vague, speculative, 
and lacking a foundation, and penalties for abuse of the program. 
 

https://nij.ojp.gov/topics/equipment-and


20 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

46. Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) 
 
The subgrantee agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or 
subaward, at any tier) may be used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes 
unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any accompanying accessories to support UAS. 
 
47. Requirement to report information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative 
proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS  
 
The subgrantee must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding reporting of 
information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected with (or connected to 
the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or 
procurement contract from the federal government. Under certain circumstances, subgrantees of 
OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal 
System for Award Management (known as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and 
performance system (currently, "FAPIIS"). The details of subgrantee obligations regarding the 
required reporting (and updating) of information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative 
proceedings to the federal designated integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS") 
within SAM are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award 
condition: Subgrantee Integrity and Performance Matters, including Subgrantee Reporting to 
FAPIIS), and are incorporated by reference here. 
 
48. Facial Recognition Technology (FRT) 
 
In accepting this award, the subgrantee agrees that grant funds cannot be used for Facial 
Recognition Technology (FRT) unless the subgrantee has policies and procedures in place to 
ensure that the FRT will be utilized in an appropriate and responsible manner that promotes 
public safety, and protects privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties and complies with all 
applicable provisions of the U.S. Constitution, including the Fourth Amendment’s protection 
against unreasonable searches and seizures and the First Amendment’s freedom of association 
and speech, as well as other laws and regulations. Subgrantees utilizing funds for FRT must 
make such policies and procedures available to DOJ upon request. 
 
49. Documentation requirements  
 
The subgrantee agrees promptly to provide, upon request, financial or programmatic 
related documentation related to this award, including documentation of expenditures and 
achievements. 
 
50. Non-Supplanting requirement 
 
Funds made available through this award will not be used to replace state or local funds that 
would, in the absence of this grant, be made available for the same purposes. Guidance on the 
non-supplanting requirement is available here: 
https://ojp.gov/archives/financial_guides/financialguide11/PreawardRequirements/chapter5page
6.htm 

https://ojp.gov/archives/financial_guides/financialguide11/PreawardRequirements/chapter5page6.htm
https://ojp.gov/archives/financial_guides/financialguide11/PreawardRequirements/chapter5page6.htm


21 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

 
51. Discrimination findings 
 
In the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a 
finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the ground of race, religion, national 
origin, sex, or disability against the subgrantee organization, the subgrantee must forward a copy 
of the findings to the Office for Civil Rights. 
 
52. Civil Rights training requirement 
 
The subgrantee agrees to meet the civil rights training requirements through viewing the online 
training modules offered through the Office on Civil Rights at 
https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/assistance.htm.  The subgrantee must review these training modules at 
least once per grant cycle and must view the civil rights overview, standard assurances modules, 
and the module on the obligations to provide services to limited English proficient (LEP) 
individuals. 
 
53. Performance and obligation periods 
 
Grant funds, including state and local match, may be expended and/or obligated during the grant 
award period of performance.  Subgrantees may only charge to the award allowable costs 
incurred during this grant award period.  All properly incurred obligations must be liquidated no 
later than 45 days after the end of the award period.  No new obligations may be made during the 
liquidation period.  The subgrantee agrees to submit a final financial report and return all 
received and unexpended grant funds to DCJS within 45 days of the end of the grant award 
period. 
 
54. Travel Policy 
 
Subgrantees may follow their own established travel rates if they have an established travel 
policy.  DCJS reserves the right to determine the reasonableness of an organization’s travel 
policy.  If the subgrantee does not have an established policy, then they must adhere to federal 
travel policy.  DCJS allows reimbursement for actual reasonable expenses and meals according 
to per diem.  Please refer to the following IRS website for the most current mileage rate:  
https://www.irs.gov/tax-professionals/standard-mileage-rates. Transportation costs for air and 
rail must be at coach rates. 
 
55. Project initiation   
 
Within 60 days of the starting date of the grant, the subgrantee must initiate the project funded.  
If not, the subgrantee must report to DCJS, in writing, the steps taken to initiate the project, the 
reasons for the delay, and the expected starting date.  If the project is not operational within 90 
days of the start date, the subgrantee must obtain approval in writing from DCJS for a new 
implementation date or DCJS may cancel and terminate the project and redistribute the funds. 
 
  

https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/assistance.htm
https://www.irs.gov/tax-professionals/standard-mileage-rates


22 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

56. Contract Amendments 
 
Contract/budget amendments must be submitted for review in the On-line Grants 
Management System (OGMS). These contract amendments include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 

• Budget Amendment – Revision 
• Budget Amendment – In Line Adjustment 
• Change in Grant Funded Staff 
• Change in Authorized Official 
• Change in Award Sponsorship 
• Project Scope of Work Revision 
• Reporting Extension 

 
Check with your grant monitor for details regarding submitting contract amendments via 
OGMS. 

No amendment to the approved budget may be made without the prior approval of 
DCJS.  No more than two (2) budget amendments will be permitted during the grant 
period. Budget Revision – Amendment requests, along with accompanying narrative, are 
to be submitted using the On-line Grants Management System (OGMS).  The 
submission deadline for budget amendments is 45 days prior to the end of the grant 
period. Changes in grant funded staff and authorized officials must be made in a contract 
amendment within 30 days of the change occurring. 

57. Financial audits  

The subgrantee agrees to forward a copy to DCJS of the subgrantee’s scheduled financial 
statement audit for the fiscal year that covers the grant award period.  If the subgrantee is a local 
government or non-profit organization and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards (from all 
sources) during its fiscal year, the subgrantee is required to submit the appropriate single or 
program specific audit in accordance with the provisions outlined in 2CFR Part 200 Subpart F. 
 
58. Procurement  
 
The subgrantee agrees to provide for fair and open competition when procuring goods and 
services with award funds and to maintain documented procurement policies and procedures. 
Permission to make a sole source procurement requires the prior approval of DCJS. Any request 
for exemption to this regulation must be filed in writing. 
 
59. Conflict of interest   
 
All subgrantees must have a written conflict of interest policy. The subgrantee certifies that it 
will disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to DCJS in accordance with applicable 
federal awarding agency policy as required in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E § 200.112. 
 



23 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

60. Financial management systems 
 
All subgrantees are required to establish and maintain adequate accounting systems and financial 
records and to accurately account for funds awarded to them. They must have a financial 
management system in place that is able to record and report on the receipt, obligation, and 
expenditure of grant funds. Subgrantees must properly track the use of award funds and maintain 
adequate supporting documentation including maintaining proper documentation for all paid 
grant and match staff and volunteer time reported. Further information is available in the DOJ 
Financial Guide at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/doj/pdfs/DOJ_FinancialGuide.pdf.  
 
61. Required reports 
 
The subgrantee agrees to submit, on or before scheduled due dates, such reports as required by 
DCJS.  This includes filing required reports using the On-line Grants Management System 
(OGMS).  Failure to submit reports by the deadline dates may result in delay for reimbursement 
requests and/or cancellation of the subaward. 
 
62. Delegation of responsibility 
 
Any delegation of responsibility for carrying out grant-funded activities to any entity must be 
pursuant to a written memorandum of understanding by which the implementing organization 
agrees to comply with all applicable grant terms, conditions, and assurances.  Any such 
delegation notwithstanding, the applicant acknowledges by its acceptance of the award its 
ultimate responsibility for compliance with all terms, conditions, and assurances of the grant 
award. 
 
63. Monitoring and access to grant records 
 
The subgrantee at any tier, agrees to comply with OJP and DCJS grant monitoring guidelines, 
protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with BJA, OCFO, and DCJS on all grant monitoring 
requests, including requests related to desk reviews, enhanced programmatic desk reviews, 
and/or site visits. The subgrantee agrees to provide to BJA, OCFO, and DCJS all documentation 
necessary to complete monitoring tasks, including documentation related to any subawards made 
under this award. Further, the subgrantee agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by BJA, 
OCFO, and DCJS for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with 
BJA's/OCFO's/DCJS’s grant monitoring activities may result in sanctions affecting the 
subgrantee's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other restrictions on 
the subgrantee's access to grant funds; referral to the Office of the Inspector General for audit 
review; designation of the subgrantee as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s). 
 
64. Required attendance at BJA sponsored events 
 
The subgrantee at any tier, must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical 
assistance events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request. 
 
  

https://ojp.gov/financialguide/doj/pdfs/DOJ_FinancialGuide.pdf


24 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

65. Encouragement of submission of “success stories” 
 
BJA strongly encourages the subgrantee to submit annual (or more frequent) JAG success 
stories. To submit a success story, sign in to a My BJA account at 
https://www.bja.gov/Login.aspx to access the Success Story Submission form. If the subgrantee 
does not yet have a My BJA account, please register at https://www.bja.gov/profile.aspx. Once 
registered, one of the available areas on the My BJA page will be "My Success Stories." Within 
this box, there is an option to add a Success Story. Once reviewed and approved by BJA, all 
success stories will appear on the BJA Success Story web page at 
https://www.bja.gov/SuccessStoryList.aspx. 
 
66. Access to services – Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

Compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets 
Act requires subgrantees of Federal financial assistance to take reasonable steps to provide 
persons of LEP meaningful access to services. All organizations that provide direct services are 
required to have an LEP plan as part of their organization’s policies. Further information on the 
responsibilities to provide language services to LEP individuals can be found 
at https://www.lep.gov/. 
 
67. Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled 
equipment under OJP awards  
 
Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and 
Criminal Justice Practices To Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the 
use of federal funds under this award for purchases or transfers of specified equipment by law 
enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any subrecipient 
(“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under 
this award to acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The 
details of the requirement are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition: 
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment 
under OJP awards), and are incorporated by reference here. 
 
68. Exceptions regarding Prohibited and Controlled Equipment under OJP awards  
 
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the other terms and conditions of this award, 
including in the condition regarding "Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--
prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards," the requirements for the “Transfer/Sale 
of Award-Funded Controlled Equipment to Other LEAs” and the requirements for the 
“Transfer/Sale of Award-Funded Controlled Equipment to NON-LEAs” do not apply to this 
award. 
 
  

https://www.bja.gov/SuccessStoryList.aspx
https://www.lep.gov/


25 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

69. Publications 
 
Any written, visual, or audio publications funded in whole or in part under this award, with the 
exception of press releases, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported 
by Grant No. awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance. The Bureau of Justice Assistance is a 
component of the Department of Justice's Office of Justice Programs, which also includes the 
Bureau of Justice Statistics, the National Institute of Justice, the Office of Juvenile Justice and 
Delinquency Prevention, the Office for Victims of Crime, and the SMART Office. Points of 
view or opinions in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the 
official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice and DCJS." The current edition of 
the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication 
activities. 
 
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following 
statement on the home page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) 
whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to interior content), and on any pages from which 
a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages that provide results or 
outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the 
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice and DCJS. 
Neither the U.S. Department of Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are 
responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including, without limitation, its content, 
technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of the 
foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may 
be included through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the 
full text of the statement. 
 
70. Additional “Action Item” encumbrances 

Any additional “action item” encumbrances related to your award will be shown online via the 
DCJS On-line Grant Management System (OGMS) website under menu item Grants> 
Encumbrances. The subgrantee must comply with any items listed there prior to DCJS 
disbursing funds. 

Unless otherwise stated, all encumbrances must be met by their determined deadline.  If they remain 
unmet by their deadline, then the subgrantee must report to the DCJS, by letter, the steps taken to 
achieve compliance, the reasons for non-compliance, and the expected date of compliance. 
DCJS may terminate grant funding based upon unexplained or unreasonable failure to 
substantially comply with encumbrances within reasonable specified time frames. 

  



26 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

 
 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND PROJECTED DUE DATES 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  

By accepting the accompanying grant award, you are agreeing to submit online quarterly 
financial reports and programmatic progress reports, if any, for this grant throughout the grant 
period, as well as final reports to close the grant, if required. No eligible current subgrantee of 
funding will be considered for continuation funding if, as of the continuation application due 
date, any of the required financial and progress reports for the current grant are more than 30 
days overdue. For good cause, submitted in writing by the grant subgrantee, DCJS may waive 
this provision. 
 

To submit reports, requests, and to view your grant award, refer to the On-line Grants 
Management System (OGMS) at our website: website: ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov. In order to use this 
web-based system, if you have not previously done so, you must register in OGMS. 
 

• FINANCIAL REPORTS & REIMBURSEMENTS (Claims) – OGMS Detail of 
Expenditure/ Reimbursement forms are due within 45 days after the grant period ends 
on 07/31/2024 .  If the due date falls on a weekend or non-business day, the report is 
due on the next business day. For financial questions, contact Joseph Thompson at 
(804) 225-2782 or via email at Joseph.thompson@dcjs.virginia.gov 
 

• BUDGET (Contract) AMENDMENTS may be submitted for consideration through 
OGMS. Please refer to “#56. Contract amendments”, above. Please review your 
Special Conditions carefully to determine the requirements and procedures for 
amending budgets. For contract amendment questions, contact your assigned Grant 
Monitor. 
 

  

2023 Local Law Enforcement Grant  

FFY22 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program  

Funding Opportunity: 522456 

 

 

 

https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/
https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/
mailto:Joseph.thompson@dcjs.virginia.gov


27 
DCJS 2024 LOLE-FFY23 JAG Special Conditions 
11/2023 

• GRANT CLOSEOUT: The subgrantee has up to 45 days from the end of the award 
period to liquidate any unpaid obligations and submit a final claims report. The 
liquidation period exists to allow projects time to receive final invoices and make final 
payments -- no new obligations may be incurred during this period. Closeout 
questions should be directed to Joseph Thompson at (804) 225-2782 or via email at 
Joseph.thompson@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTING SCHEDULE 
 

CALENDAR QUARTER 
ENDING REPORT DUE DATES 

07/31/2024 09/14/2024 
 
 
            

For technical assistance regarding OGMS, please e-mail: ogmssupport@dcjs.virginia.gov. 

For grant related questions or requests, please contact your assigned DCJS Grant Monitor. 

 

 

 

mailto:ogmssupport@dcjs.virginia.gov






St. Paul Fire Department 
16640 Russell Street 
PO Box 613 
St. Paul, VA 24283 
www.spfdva.com 
V 276-762-9516 F 276-794-5167 

EMS First Response ResoluƟon Request 
Russell County, VA 

• Need for EMS First Response
– EMS Agencies naƟonwide are struggling to conƟnue to operate with 

volunteers.
– We must be creaƟve to help fill the void to protect our own and our 

ciƟzens.
• The ability to protect our own when an ambulance is not 

available. Firefighters are at a high risk of cardiac and traumaƟc 
emergencies.

• To protect our EMS licensed members to be able to provide 
more paƟent care rather than just basic first aid.

• Our Request
– ResoluƟon from the Board of Supervisors for St. Paul Fire Department 

to provide Emergency Medical Services as a First Response Non-
Transport Agency

– AuthorizaƟon for the County Administrator or Emergency 
Management Director to sign the EMS Agency Licensure form

• Why
– This will allow St. Paul Fire Department to be licensed by the Virginia 

Office of Emergency Medical Services to respond to EMS calls to 
provide lifesaving Emergency Medical Services when an ambulance is 
not available, buying Ɵme for an ambulance to arrive to the scene.

– Reference: 12VAC5-31-610

Wesley Lawson | wlawson@spfdva.com | 276-870-4208 

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Virginia Administrative Code 
Title 12. Health 
Agency 5. Department of Health 
Chapter 31. Virginia Emergency Medical Services Regulations  
  
Part II. EMS Agency, EMS Vehicle and EMS Personnel Standards  
Article 1. EMS Agency Licensure and Requirements  
12VAC5-31-610. Designated emergency response agency standards. 
A. A designated emergency response agency shall develop or participate in a written local EMS
response plan that addresses the following items:
 

1. The designated emergency response agency shall develop and maintain, in coordination
with their locality, a written plan to provide 24-hour coverage of the agency's primary service
area with the available personnel to achieve the approved responding interval standard.
 
2. A designated emergency response agency shall conform to the local responding interval, or
in the absence of a local standard the EMS agency shall develop a standard in conjunction with
OMD and local government in the best interests of the patient and the community. The EMS
agency shall use the response time standard to establish a time frame the EMS agency complies
with on a 90% basis within its primary service area (i.e., a time frame in which the EMS agency
can arrive at the scene of a medical emergency in 90% or greater of all calls).
 

a. If the designated emergency response agency finds it is unable to respond within the
established unit mobilization interval standard, the call shall be referred to the closest
available mutual aid EMS agency.
 
b. If the designated emergency response agency finds it is able to respond to the patient
location sooner than the mutual aid EMS agency, the EMS agency shall notify the PSAP of
its availability to respond.
 
c. If the designated emergency response agency is unable to respond (e.g., lack of
operational response vehicle or available personnel), the EMS agency shall notify the PSAP.
 
d. If a designated emergency response agency determines in advance that it will be unable
to respond for emergency service for a specified period of time, it shall notify its PSAP.
 

B. A designated emergency response agency shall have available for review a copy of the local
EMS response plan that shall include the established EMS Responding Interval standards.
 
C. A designated emergency response agency shall document its compliance with the established
EMS response capability, unit mobilization interval, and responding interval standards.
 
D. A designated emergency response agency shall document an annual review of exceptions to
established EMS response capability and time interval standards. The results of this review shall
be provided to the agency's operational medical director and local governing body.
 



Statutory Authority
§§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-111.4 of the Code of Virginia.
 
Historical Notes
Derived from Virginia Register Volume 29, Issue 1, eff. October 10, 2012.
 



Steve Breeding
Highlight


























































	Organizational Meeting 1.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24   6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Pre-Authorization Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Reassessment RFP.pdf
	QUESTIONS: All inquiries for information regarding this solicitation should be directed to: Lonzo Lester, County Administrator, Phone: (276) 889-8000; faxed to (276) 889-8011, or e-mail:  lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us.
	COMPANY INFORMATION/SIGNATURE: In compliance with this Request for Proposal and to all conditions imposed herein and hereby incorporated by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the services and goods in accordance with the attached ...
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL General Reassessment Services
	II BACKGROUND:
	IV REQUIREMENTS:
	23. Board of Equalization:  Following the general reassessment, the County is required by law to appoint a Board of Equalization (BOE). The BOE shall establish meeting dates, times and places, to receive complaints from property owners regarding appra...
	25. Valuation Methodology:
	D. Contract Administration:
	V. PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS:
	VI. EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT:
	VIII CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION:
	IX PAYMENT PROCEDURES:


	rev-grant-soga-instructions-final.pdf
	 Project Director, Project Administrator, and Finance Officer

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	SPFD - County Request.pdf
	St. Paul Fire Department�EMS First Response�in Russell County, VA
	Need For EMS First Response
	Our Request For EMS First Response
	Why

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	12VAC5-31-610.pdf
	Part II. EMS Agency, EMS Vehicle and EMS Personnel Standards
	Article 1. EMS Agency Licensure and Requirements
	12VAC5-31-610. Designated emergency response agency standards.

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 1/2/24      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:




